SPI (Australla) Assets Pty Ltd

ABN 60 126 327 624

Financial statements |
for the ‘year ended 31 March 2009




Contents

Directors' report
Auditor's independence declaration
Financial statements
Income statements
Balance sheets
Statements of recognised income and expense
Cash flow statements
Notes to the financial statements
Directors' declaration
Audit report

o
o

[(a]
0]

P

PO ORIDO

- =~




SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Directors’ report
31 March 2009

Directors’ report

The Board of Directors of SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd ("the Company") has pleasure in submitting its report, together
with the financial report, on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as "the Group") consisting of the Company and
the entities it controlled at the end of or during the year to 31 March 2009. The comparative information is for the period
from 18 July 2007 (being the date of incorporation) to 31 March 2008. Operations results for the comparative period are
for the 7 month pericd from 31 August 2007 (being the date of acquisition) to 31 March 2008.

Directors
The following persons were directors of the Company during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of this
report (unless otherwise stated): .

Mr Quek Poh Huat -
Mr Peter William Magarry

“Mr Yap Chee Keong

Mr Lim Howe Run

Mr Chia Chee Ming, Timothy (appointed 4 July 2008)

Mr Dilhan Pillay Sandrasegara (appointed 7 July 2008)

Mr Paul John Adams (appointed 10 November 2008) . )

Ms Lim Lay Hong (appointed 1 February 2009 - alternate to Mr Yap Chee Keong)

- Principal activities ' :
- The Group consists of two operating businesses, infrastructure investments and infrastructure services. The infrastructure

investments business has ownership interests in a number of regulated and unregulated assets in the Australian energy
sector. The infrastructure services business delivers engineering, design and construction and field based maintenance
services across gas, electricity and water. :

The operating businesses comprise of the following principal segments:

Infrastructure Investments Business

Electricity Distribution ]

Jemena Electricity Network, a Victorian electricity distribution business supplying electricity to over 300,000 homes and
businesses through approximately 11,000 kilometres of distribution system. The network services 950 square kilometres
of northwest greater Melbourne.

Gas Distribution

Jemena Gas Network, a New South Wales gas distribution business was established in 1837 and owns approximately
24,000 kilometres of natural gas distribution system, delivering approximately 100 petajoules per annum ("P.J p.a") of
natural gas to more than 1 million homes and businesses across New South Wales.

Gas Transmission _ ‘ ‘
The Eastern Gas Pipeline transports gas 796 kilometres from the Gippsland Basin in Victoria to Sydney and regional

" NSW, and has a current capacity of approximately 91 PJ p-a.

The Queensland Gas Pipeline transports gas 627 kilometres from the Surat and Cooper Basins to Gladstone and
Rockhampton, and has a current capacity of approximately 27 PJ p.a. :

VicHub is a pip_elirie interconnect facility situated at Longford, Victoria. The facility was commissioned in January 2003
and enables gas to flow between the Eastern Gas Pipeline, Tasmanian Gas Pipeline and APA Group's Victorian gas
transmission system. The facility has a nominal daily capacity of 150 terajoules per day ("TJ p.d").

Energy Investment
The Company owns a 34% interest in United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd ("UEDH"), the ultimate holding company
of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd ("UED"). UED distributes electricity throughout southeast Melbourne and the

"Mornington Peninsula in Victoria. The network covers approximately 10,000 kilometres of electricity fines and services

over 600,000 end users.

The Group holds a 50% interest in the ActewAGL Distribution Partnership. The partnership owns, plans, develops,
constructs, operates and maintains the electricity network in the Australian Capital Territory ("ACT") and the gas neftworks
in the ACT, Queanbeyan and Nowra and manages all water and wastewater operations in the ACT. The remaining 50% of
the partnership is owned by ACTEW Distribution Limited, a subsidiary of ACTEW Corporation Limited. ACTEW
Corporation Limited is a government owned company with assets and investments in water, wastewater, electricity, gas
and telecommunications. ' '




SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Litd
Directors' report

31 March 2009

{continued)

Principai activities (continued) ‘

The Group holds a minority interest (6.8%) in TransACT Communications Pty Ltd (TransACT). TransACTis a
communications company launched in May 2000. TransACT operates a broadband communications network across
Ganberra and surrounding suburbs and offers a suite of services including subscription television, broadband and phone
services. ActewAGL Partnership provides a number of services for the TransACT business including marketing, customer
service, sales and bilfing systems.

Infrastructure Services Business

Asset Management

The infrastructure services business of the Group, through its Jemena Asset Management business, is a management and.
service provider to owners of electricity, gas and water infrastructure assets. These services range from multi year
contracts for a full suite of asset management planning, control room, construction, maintenance, metering, billing, back
office services and corporate support services to single project-specific contracts for either construction or maintenance.

Dividends ' S
No dividends were declared or paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2009.

Review of operations
The net profit after tax of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 was $46.8 million (period 2008: $30.9 million loss).
The financial results have been reported in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian

" Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. ' '

Significant changes in the state of affairs

Re-capitalisation of the Group (debt refinancing) ‘

The Group undertook a capital restructure during the financial year via a debt refinancing process. This resulted in the
incorporation of a $3.4 billion Syndicated Facility Agreement ("SFA") in July 2008, replacing the circa $5.3 billion of
acquisition bridge loans the Group had in place at 31 March 2008. The reduction in debt was also financed via Trust
Loans, additional funds which are akin to equity, from the Group's ultimate owner, Singapore Power Limited ("SP"). These
funds are classified as a current liability at balance date. Accounting standards deem that the terms of the agreement
underpinning the funds injection do not satisfy a classification of equity, due to the amounts owing being at call. Whilst the
terms of the loans indicate they are repayable on demand, the Directors have received a letter of undertaking confirming
there is no intention to call upon the Trust Loans for at least the next 12 manths, if doing so would cause the Company to
be unable to meet its debts and obligations as and when they fall due. The Trust Loans liability is non-interest bearing.

Transfer of 34% shareholding of UEDH info SPIAA Group . :

In December 2008 the Group accepted the transfer of a 34% shareholding in UEDH from Westnet Infrastructure Group Ltd
("WIGL") (formerly Alinta 2000 Ltd). As part of the sale of the former Alinta Group to the consortium of Singapore Power
International Pte Ltd and various Babcock and Brown entities, the 34% stake in UEDH-was allocated to the SEIAA Group.
However due to outstanding consent related issues with the other shareholders of UEDH, the 34% shareholding was not
legally transferred until December 2008. The Group has taken a substance view of the UEDH investment since acquisition
and included its share of the UEDH results in its financial statements. '

Company Rebranding )

In August 2008 the Group rebranded its name, logo and image from Alinta to Jemena. The Group was required to perform
a rebranding exercise as the ownership of the former Alinta brand was retained by Babcock & Brown Power under the
terms of the Alinta sale agreement. Most of the legal entities names within the SPIAA Group have removed the reference
to Alinta and replaced it with Jemena.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year i

On 1 May 2009, the Australian Energy Regulator ("AER") released its final report on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital
"("WACC") to be used in determining tariffs for electricity distribution and transmission businesses. This determination will
be applied to Jemena Electricity Network's next regulatory reset period 2011-2015.

On 1 May 2009, Westnet Infrastructure Group Ltd (formerly known as Alinta 2000 Ltd), a company owned by Babcock and
Brown Infrastructure Ltd, transferred its 51% ownership of Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd ("AAM") to a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. AAM is therefore, from 1 May 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Refer to note 38 for details regarding the ownership of AAM in the finaricial year ending 31 March 2009.

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 March 2009 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

{a) the Group's operations in future financial years, or
{b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or
(c) " the Group's state of affairs in future financial years.
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Likely developments and expected results of operations

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected resulls of aperaticns have not
been included in these financial statements because ihe directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonahle
prejudice to the Group. ' o

Environmental regulation and perfarmance

The operations of the Group are subject to environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and State legislation
relating 1o assels in which the Group has an ownership interest and works end services provided by the Graup to third
parties, The directors are not aware of any significant breaches during the period covered by this report.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group alms ta control the impact of its activities on the environment and to the
_grealest extent possible, ensure thal its operations and those of its subsidiaries, are conducted in accordance with existing
legislative requirements. .

The Group has not incurred any liability {including any rectification costs) under any environmental legislation. -

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor’s Independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is sel out
on page 4.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998, issued by the Australian Securities and
investments Commission, relating to the “rounding ofi” of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts in the financial
stalements have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Oider to the nearest thousand dollars, or in cerialn
cases, {p the nearest dollar, : ’

Auditor
The appoiniment of the Group's external auditar is 1) reviewed: and 2) reconfirmed, on an annual basis,

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

Quek Poh Huat
Director

Paul John Adams
Director

Data: ‘-I"’ftl MQ.J.J19’B] .
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: the directors of SPI {Australia} Assets Pty Ltd

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial
year ended 31 March 2009 there have been:

(1)  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(i1)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

S

KPMG

WA

Michael Bray
Partner

Melbourne

4 May 2009

KPMG, an Australian Eartnership and a member firm of the KPMG network )
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.




Revenue from continuing operations

Other income

Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Maintenance expense

Other expenses )
Operating profit before net finance costs

Finance income

Finance costs

Change in fair value of effectwe economic
hedge instruments that did not qualify for
hedge accounting

Unwind of effective economic hedge
instruments that did not qualify for hedge
accounting in the period ended 31 March 2008
Net finance costs

Share of net profits of associate and joint
venture accounted for using the equity method
Profit/(loss} before income tax

Income tax benefit/{expense)
Profit/{loss) from continuing eperations

Profit/{loss) for the pefiod

Notes

o co

Consolidated )
1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to 1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to
31 March 2009 31 March 2008* 31 March 2009_ 31 March 2008*

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
income statements
For the period ended 31 March 2009

Parent

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
1,282,392 619,314 . .
19,840 11,808 23,236 46,425
(218,472) (132,778) - -
(170,999) (86,529) - .
(431,988) (200,577) - -
(120,065) (53.176) {7.918) (5.123)
360,708 158,062 15,318 41,302
14,767 15,728 211,003 113,329
(341,772) (286,664) (292,408) (248,422)
. 46,732 - -
{10.927) - : -
(337,932) (224 204) (81,315) (135.093)
51,446 23 729 - -
74,222 (42,413) (65,997) (93,791)
(27.423) 11,466 38,939 35.038
46,799 (30,947) (27,058) (58.753]
46,799 (30.947) (27,058) (58,753)

*Comparative operations results are for the 7 month period from 31 August 2007 (being the date of acquisition} to 31

March 2008.

The above income statements should be read in conjunction'with the accompanying notes.




SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Balance sheets
As at 31 March 2009

Consolidated Parent
. 2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS

Current assets ' -

Cash and cash equivalents 10 . 42,203 81,550 - 9,898 22,097

Receivables 11 289,187 289,918 94,098 94,938

Inventories 12 26,254 . 16,387 - -

Derivative financial instruments 13 161 83 - -

Current tax receivables 14 58,376 77,748 65,128 90,681

Other current assets : 15 10,295 6,353 - -

Total current assets . 426.476 472039 169.124 207,716

Non-current assets

Receivables 16 " 12,240 6,800 5,511,023 5,037,637

Investments accounted for using the equity ’

method ' . 17 867,789 989,374 271,030 265,760

Other financial assets . 18 - - 2,515,998 2,417,451

Property, plant and equipment - 19 4,843,975 4,632,452 - -

Deferred tax assets 28 40,867 - 117,268 70,243

Iintangible assets . 20 2,913,300 2,832,210 ) - -

Derivative financial instruments ' 13 78,895 25,452 864 -

Total non-current assets . 8,756,866 8,485,288 8,416,183 7.791.091

Total assets o 9,183,342 8,958,327 8,585,307 7.998 807

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities .

Payables 21 280,580 304,642 © 66,921 88.411

Provisions ' 22 _ 88,799 214,987 44,124 57,979

Interest bearing liabilities 23 55,000 5,320,000 55,000 5,320,000

Derivative financial instruments 13 : 167 - 57,628 - -

Interest bearing debt securities 24 275,000 274,372 - -

Trust loans 25 - 4,500,017 2,106,484 4,500,017 2,106,484

Other current liabilities 26 8.754 - _6.842 - -

Total current liabilities 5,208,317 8,284 955 4,666,062 7572874

Non-current liabilities N

Interest bearing liabilities ‘ 27 3,858,843 584,285 3,451,648 -

Derivative financial instruments ‘ 13 118,868 23,545 - -

Deferred tax liabilities 28 - 5,928 - -

Provisions - 29 108,707 108,879 29,800 -

Other non-current liabilities . 30 3,179 405 523,003 484,686
- Retirement benefit obligations 31 62,886 4218 - -

Total non-current liabilities 4,152,483 728,258 4.004,451 . 484 686

Total liabilities ' 9,360,800 9.013.213 8,670,513 - 8,057,560

Net assets/(liabilities) , {177,458} {54 886) (85,206) (58.753)

EQUITY : ;

Share capital 32 - - - -

Reserves 33(a) (121,249) 878 605 -

Accumuylated losses ) 33(b) (56,209) (55.764) (85.811) (58.753)

Total equity/(deficiency) (177 458} (54.886) (85.208) (58.753)

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Actuarial losses on retirement benefit
obligation, net of tax

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges,
net of tax

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

Net income/(loss) recognised directly in
equity ‘
Profit/{loss) for the period

Total recognised income and expense for
the period

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Statements of recognised income and expense
For the period ended 31 March 2009

Consolidated Parent
1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to 1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to
31 March 2009 31 March 2008* 31 March 2009 31 March 2008*

Notes  $'000 $000 $'000 $000
33 (47,244) (24,817) ; ]
33 (122,510) (1,178) 605 ;
33 383 2,056 5 ]
(169,371) (23,939) 605 .
46,799 (30.947) (27.058) (58.753)
(122.572) (54,886) (26,453) (58.753)

*Comparative operations results are for the 7 month pericd from 31 August 2007 (being the date of acquisition) to 31

March 2008.

Other movements in equily arising from fransactions with owners are set out in note 33 .

The above statements of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/{loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation .
Share of results of associate and joint venture
Interest income

interest expense .

Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets

Gain on disposal of investment

Exchange differences

Operating profit before changes in working
capital and provisions:

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Others

Interest received

Income taxes received/(paid)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities _
Payment for purchase of business, net of cash
acquired

Payments for property, plant and equipment
and intangibles

Loans to third parties

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment
Acquisition of interest in associate

Loans to associate

Dividends received from investments in
associate and joint venture

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings from a related
company

Proceeds from borrowings

Loan to a related company

Repayment of borrowings .

interest paid

Debt issuance cost

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

" equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
period .

‘ Consolidated
1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to 1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to
31 March 2009 31 March 2008* 31 March 2009 31 March 2008*

SP1 (Australia) Assets Pty Lid
Cash flow statements
" For the period ended 31 March 2009

Parent

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
74,222 (42.413) (65.997) (93791)
170,999 86,520 - .
(51,446) (23,729) . -
(14,767) (15,728) (211,093) (113,329)
352,699 239,032 292,408 248,422

4,344 (416) - i
) ) ] (23,000)
1,576 10 1,891 -
94,686 (54,457) (1,258)" (9,485)
(171,895) (4,066) (26,570) (48,296)
32,395 2,157 8,722 -
6,941 14,437 187,057 106,027
18.540 (6.585) (33.613) -
518,794 195,671 151,547 66.548
37 (65,594)  (7,039,164) - (7,083,000
(408,134) (127 481) - -
- (28.802) . (28,802)
7,984 9,750 ; -
- 160,800 - 165,000
(5,270) ) (5270) - -
(5,440) - (5,440) -
35,123 35,690 6,800 9,690
(441.331) __ (6989 .207) (3910) __{6.937,112)
2,393,592 2,106,484 1,992,930 2,106,484
3,525,000 5,655,000 3,525,000 5,655,000
. . ; (336,375)
(5,650,164) (660,000) (5,320,000 (335,000)
(361,803) (226,398) (334,331) (197,448)
(23.435) - (23.435) -
(116,810) __ 6.875.086 (159.836) __ 6.892.661
(39,347) 81,550 (12,199) 22,097
81,550 - - 22,097 -
10 42,203 81,550 9,598 22,097

“Comparative operations resulfs are for the 7 month period from 31 August 2007 (being the date of acquisition) to 31

March 2008.

The above cash flow statements should be read in confunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

1 Basis of preparation

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd ("the Company”) is a company domiciled in Australia. The financial report includes separate
financial statements for the Company as an individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of SPI (Australia)
Assets Pty Ltd, as the parent, and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group”).

As the Company was incorporated on 18 July 2007 and its subsidiaries were acquired on 31 August 2007, the
comparatives are for the period 18 July 2007 to 31 March 2008. Operations results are for the 7 months from 31 August
2007 to 31 March 2008,

A consortium comprising Singapore Power International Pte Ltd ("SPI"), Babcock & Brown Infrastructure Ltd {"BBI"),
Babcock & Brown Power Ltd ("BBP"), and Babcock & Brown Wind Ltd ("BBW"), together the "Consortium”, acquired Alinta
Ltd and its controlled entities (the "Alinta group") on 31 August 2007. As part of the acquisition by the Consortium, the
Company (being a subsidiary of SPI) acquired the following components of the Alinta group:

- The asset management business comprising 100% of the operations of Jemena Asset Management Pty Ltd (previously
known as Alinta Asset Management (3) Pty Ltd) and the eastern Australian operations of Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd
now trading as "Jemena East" ' ’

- NSW Gas Distribution Network

- Victorian Electricity Distribution Network

- Queensland Gas Pipeline {("QGP")

- Eastern Gas Pipeline ("EGP")

- Vichub Interconnect Facility {"Vichub")

- Alinta LGA Ltd {"Alinta LGA") and its controlled entities

- 34% investment in United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd ("UEDH")
- 50% investment in ActewAGL Distribution Partnership ("ActewAGL")

- B.8% investment in TransAct Communications Pty Ltd

Going concern basis of accounting

The Group has a deficiency of net assets. Further, the Group's current liabilities exceed its current assets by $4,782 million
This is primarily due to loans amounting to $4,500 million (refer notes 3(f)(ii) and 25) issued to the Company by SPI
(Australia) Trust (Trust Loans), a wholly owned entity of Singapore Power International Pte Ltd (SP1) and current interest
bearing liabilittes (working capital facilities of $55 million, refer note 3{f)(v) and 23, and debt securities (fixed rate notes of
$275 million, refer note 3(f)(iii) and 24, totalling $330 million). SPIis the Singapore parent entity of the Company, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group's intermediate owner, Singapore Power Limited ("SP™).

The Trust Loans are classified as current debt as they are repayable on demand. The loans are non-interest bearing and
subordinated to existing debt facilities, and therefore are akin to equity provided by SPI to the Company.

Whilst the terms of the Trust Loans indicate they are repayable on demand, the Directors of SPI have issued a letter of
undertaking confirming their intention not to call upon the Trust Loans for at least the next 12 months if doing so would
cause the Company to be unable to meet its debts and obligations as and when they fall due. The Directors of SPI have
also confirmed that SPI has the capacity to provide this support.

The refinancing plan for the current interest bearing liabilities and debt securities of $330 million has been approved by the
Company's Board and in principle approvals have been received from debt providers.

Hence the directors believe that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. The financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the continuity of normal trading operations as the Group is trading
_ profitably and has the abovementioned undertaking letter from its parent company.

10-




SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Lid
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31 March 2009

1. Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards ("AASBs") and Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the
Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and Interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The general purpose financial report was authorised for issue on 4 May 2009. : -
(b) Basis of measurement

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluatlon of
defined benefit superannuation funds and derivative financial instruments. :

{c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency and the functional
currency of the majority of members of the Group.

(d) Accounting policies
Significant accounting policies for this general purpose financial report are presented in note 2 below.
(e} Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management fo make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on past experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable judgements under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
_carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from. other sources. Actual results may differ fron:
these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current’and future periods. :

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
finanmal statements, are discussed in note 4.

-11-




SPI (Australia} Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below, These policies have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial report includes separate
financial statements for SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd as an individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of SPI
(Australia) Assets Pty Ltd and its subsidiaries. .

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

(a) Principlee of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilittes of all subsidiaries of $PI (Australia) Assets Ply
Ltd ("company” or "parent entity") as at 31 March 2009 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. The
Company and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this fnanmal report as the Group or the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The
existence and éffect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

The Group has a 49% shareholding in Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd ("AAM"). The remaining 51% is held by Westnet -
Infrastructure Group Ltd (formerly Alinta 2000 Limited), a company owned by Babcock & Brown Infrastructure Ltd. Upon
receipt of relevant consents, ownership will be transferred to the Group. The Group is entitled to a revenue stream from
AAM which reflects the earnings derived by AAM from the east coast asset management business conducted by AAM.

The Group uses proportional consolidation to include the assets employed, liabilities incurred, income derived and
expenses incurred from the east coast operations in their respective classification categories.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the individual financial statements of the Company.

(il Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for in the parent
entity financial statements using the cost methad and in the consoclidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted 'against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are recognised in the
parent entity’s income statement, while in the consolldated financial statements they reduce the carrymg amount of the
investment. .

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the assaciate. '

" Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest '

in the associates. Unrealised losses are aiso eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(ifi) Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets:

The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and expenses of a joint venture operatlon have been incorporated in
the financial statements under the approprlate headings. .

~12-




SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

{continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Principles of consolidation (continued)

Joint venture entities: ‘

The interest in a joint venture partnership is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
and is carried at cost by the parent entity. Under the equity method, the share of the profits or losses of the partnership is
recognised in the income statement, and the share of movements in reserves is recognised in reserves,

Profits or losses on transactions establishing the joint venture partnership and transactions with the joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's ownership interest until such time as they are realised by the joint venture
partnership on consumption or sale, unless they relate to an unrealised loss that prowdes evidence of the |mpa|rment of
an asset transferred.

(b} Segment reporting

A husiness segment is identified for a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other business segments. A geographical segment is identified
when preducts or services are provided within a particular economic environment subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in cther economic environments.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decisiorr maker. The chief operatlng decision maker has been identified as the steering commiitee that makes strateglc
decisions,

{c) Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency .

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances )

Foreign currency transaclions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the income statement, except when they are deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

(d} Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net
of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid.

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

(i) Services revenue
Services revenue includes revenue sarned from the distribution of electricity, transmission and distribution of gas.

Services revenue is recognised on delivery which coincides with the stage of completion of the service. Customers are
billed for sales on a periodic and regular basis. However, as at each balance date, sales and receivables include an
estimation of sales delivered to customers but not yet billed ("unread sales"). This estimation is based on previous
consumption patterns and meter reading dates.

Services revenue also includes the following:

Rendering of asset management services:

Revenue from rendering of asset management services is recognised in proportion to the stage of completmn of the
contract when the stage of contract completion can be reliably measured. The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to work perfarmed.

Where the outcome of an asset management cortract cannot be reliably estimated, contract costs are expensed as
incurred. Revenue is only recognised to the extent of costs incurred where it is probable that the costs will be recovered.
An expected loss is recognlsed immediately as an expense.
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SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

{continued)

- 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued}

{d} Revenue recognition {continued)

From time to time the Group'can receive revenue in advance of providing the services. This revenue is treated as
unearned and is not recognised in the income statement but deferred to the balance sheet.

Construction contracts:

Contract revenue and expenses are recognised on an individual contract basis using the percentage of completion method
when the stage of completion can be reliably determined, costs to date can be clearly identified, and total contract revenue
and costs to complete can be reliably estimated.

Stage of completion is measured by reference to an assessment of total labour hours and other costs incurred to date as a
percentage of estimated total hours and costs for each contract.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract costs are expensed as incurred. Where it is
probable that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred. An expected lossis
recognised immediately as an expense. ‘

(i} Conlributions from customers for capital works
Contributions received from customers to assist in the financing of asset construction are recognised as revenue when the
project is complete.

(iii) Interest income
Interest i income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as revenue when the rlght to receive payment is established.

Dividends received from associates are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

(e) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

() Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial assets), dividend
income, gains on the disposal of available-for-saie financial assets, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, and gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in proft or
loss on the date that the Group's right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-
dividend date.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions, dividends on

preference shares classified as liabilities, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through the profit or

loss, impairment losses recognised on financial assets, and losses on hedging |nstruments that are recognised in profit or
loss.

Fareign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

(a) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantla[[y
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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SPI (Australia} Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpeses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
following temporary differences are not provided far: the initial recogniticn of goodwill and the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the reportmg date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are nof recognised to the extent that it is no ionger probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Tax consolidation legislation

The Company is the head entity in the tax consolidated group comprising the Company and its wholly owned Australian
tax resident subsidiaries. Entities that are not 100% owned and entities that are not residents for Australian tax purposes
are treated as separate single tax enfities.

The tax consolidated group has entered into a tax funding arrangement that reduires the wholly owned Australian tax
resident subsidiaries to make contributions to the head entity for current tax assets and liabilities arising from external
transactions occurring after the implementation-of tax consolidation.

Under the tax funding arrangement, the contributions are calculated on a "group allocation method" so that the
contributions are equivalent to the tax balances generated by external transactions entered into by the wholly owned
Australian tax resident subsidiaries, adjusted for intragroup dividends. The contributions are payable as set out in the
arrangement and reflect the timing of the head entity's obligations to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax
authorities. :

The members of the tax consolidated group have also entered into a tax sharing agreement under the tax consolidation
legislation which sets out the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entlty default on its
tax payment obligations and the treatment of entities leaving the tax consolidated group.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits at call.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost less impairment Iosses Receivables are usually settled within
no more than 30 days.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within ‘other expenses'. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amountis prewously written off are credited
against other expense in the income statement.

(i) Inventories

Inventories consist of parts and consumables and are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
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(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k} Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate (where relevant) of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of direct production overheads. Where parts of
an jitem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment.

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing part of
such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the income statement as
an expense as incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of each part of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative
period are as follows:

Category

Useful life (years)
Easements ) 40
Freehold buildings - 30-50
Leasehold buildings . 5-25
Plant and equipment: '
- Mains (Gas} 15-120
- Mains (Electricity) - 15-55
- Transformers and switchgear 15- 45
- Pipelines 40 - 50
Motor vehicles and other - 3-20

The residual value, if significant, is reassessed annually.

() Intangible assets

(il  Goodwill
All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents the difference
between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. :

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units and is
not amortised but is tested annually for impairment (refer note 2(m)). The investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

()  Distribution licences

. Licences are held to distribute electnmty within the Group's licensed regions. Licences are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. No amortisation is provided for licences as, in the opinicn of management, the licences
have unlimited useful lives. Distribution licences are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that the distribution licences may be impaired, any impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

(i) Software licences
Software licences are recorded at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over their remaining useful lives. The
estimated useful life for software licences in the current and prior period is between 3 to 5 years.

(iv) Contract infangibles

-Contract intangibles arising from a business combination are recorded at cost, being the present value of identified
contracted net cash flow streams (including renewal options), and are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated
contract lives. The weighted average estimated contract life is 17.2 years.

(v} Assets under construction
Intangible assets under construction are stated at cost. No amortisation is provided until the commencement of the

operation of the intangible assets.
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31 March 2009

{continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting p_olicies (continued)

{m) Impairment of ;assets

i} Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows associated with that asset.

When there is a decline in the recoverable amount of the Group's receivables, an impairment loss is recognised in-the
income staterment.

The recoverable amount of the Group's receivables carried at amortised-cost is calculated as the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these financial assets). Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed if the subsequent increase in
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

ii} Non-financial assels

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories (refer note 2(j}) and deferred fax assets
(refer note 2(g)), are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-
generating units (group of units) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. ]mpairment losses in respect of other assets are reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
fo the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

The carrying amounts of non current assets valued on the cost basis are reviewed to determine whether they are in excess
of their recoverable amount at balance date. If the carrying amount of a non current asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is written down to the lower amount. The write down is recognised as an expense in the profit or loss in
the reporting period in which it occurs.

Where a group of assets working together supports the generation of cash inflows, the recoverable amount is assessed in
relation to that group of assets which collectively comprise a cash generating unit (CGU).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the net amount expected to be recovered through the cash inflows and
outflows arising from its continued use and subsequent disposal.

Except where specifically stated, non current assets are recorded at the lower of cost or the recoverable amount.

In assessing recoverable amounts of non current assets, the relevant cash flows have been dlscounted to their present
values.
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(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(n) Investments and other financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost in the parent entity's financial statements.

{o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost.

(p) Borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition interest bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive cbligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outilow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. .

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelthood of an outflow with
respect to any one itern included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks spegcific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

() Employee benefits

- (i}  Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave :

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12
months of the reporting date are recognised in provisions in respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Non accurnulating sick leave is
recognised in the income statement when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable.

(i) Long service leave
The [|ab|hty for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is recognised in the
provision for employee benefits and is measured in accordance with (i) above. The |Iabl|lty for long service leave expected
- to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and
meéasured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the reporting date. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on
national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future -
cash outflows.

-(ifi} Retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefit superannuatlon plans: '

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans is calcu[ated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior

periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.
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(continued)

2 Surﬁmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{r) . Employee benefits (continued)

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is
recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straighit line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Actuarial gains and losses represent the difference between actual experience and expectations based upon a set of
actuarial assumptions. For example, underlying assumptions have changed or investment returns and salary increases
were different to expectations. The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses directly in retained profits.

Defined contribution superannuation plans: :
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are recognised as an expense in the income
statement when they are due.

(iv) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
A liability for employee benefits in the form of bonus plans is recognised in prowswns when there is no realistic alternatwe
but to settle the liability and at least one of the following conditions is met:

- there are formal terms in the plan for determining the amount of the benefit;
- the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of completion of the financial report; or
- past practice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

(v} . Termination benefils

Liabilities for termination benefits, not in connection with the acquisition of an entity or operation, are recognised when a
detailed plan for the terminations has been developed and a valid expectation has been raised in those employees
affected that the terminations will be carried out. The liabilities for termination benefits are recognised in other creditors or
provisions as applicable.

Liabilities for termination benefits expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled. Amounts expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date are measured ai
the estimated cash outflows, discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with
terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future payments wheére the effect of
discounting is material.

{vi) Employee benefit on-cost

Employee benefit on costs, including payroll tax, workers' compensanon and superannuation guarantee levy, are
recognised and included in employee benefit liabilities and costs when the employee benefits to which they relate are
recognised as liabilittes.

(s) Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair va!ue of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments.

Finance lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the income
statement.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating [eases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Derivatives and hedging activities .

. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rates arising from financing activities, with the instruments matching exactly to
the underlying debt being hedged. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not speculatively trade in
derivative financial instruments. However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as
trading instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement of fair value is
recognised immediately in the income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of
any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or
pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest and foreign exchange rates and -
the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is their quoted
market price at the balance sheet date.

(i)  Fair value hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment {or an identified portion of such asset, liability or firm commitment), any gain or loss on the
"hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement. The hedged item is restated at fair value in respect of the risk
being hedged, with any gain or loss being recognised in the income statement.

(i  Cash flow hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument is demgnated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or
liability, or a highly probable forecasted transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is recognised directly in equity.

When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non financial asset or non financial liability, or
the forecast transaction for a non financial asset or non financial liability becomes a firm commitment for which cash flow
hedge accounting is applied, the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost
or other carrying amount of the non financial asset or liahility.” If a hedge of a forecasted transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly
in equity are reclassified into the income statement in the same perlcd or periods durmg which the asset acquared or
liability assumed affects the income statement (e. g when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy statements, the associated cumulative gain or,
loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement in the same period or periods during which the
hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

When a cash flow hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship, but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to cccur, the cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income
statement or used to adjust the initial cost of the non financial item.

When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulatlve gain or loss that was reported in equlty is
immediately transferred to the income statement.
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(continued) .

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(u} Fair value estimation

The fair value and net fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; -

- the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determlned in accordance with generally accepted
prlcmg models based on discounted cash flow analysus and

- the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, use is
made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments.

Appropriate transaction costs are included in the determination of net fair value.’

(v} Business combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired.

The purchase method requires the identification of the acquirer, being the entity that obtains contral of the other combining
entities or businesses. The accounting acquirer may not be the legal acquirer.

Cost of the business combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity issued or liabilities incurred or
assumed by the accounting acquirer at the date of exchange plus costs directly atiributable to the acquisition.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values &t the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill {refer
to nate 2(1)). If the cost of acquisition is less than the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement but only after a reassessment of the
identification and measurement of the net assets acquired.

{(w} New accounting standards and interpretations

The following standards are available for early adoption at 31 March 2009, but have not been applied in preparing the
. financial statements:

Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations (2008) incorporates the following changes that are Iikely to be relevant to the
Group's operations:

- The definition of a business has been broadened, which is likely to result in more acquisitions being treated as business .
combinations

- Contingent consideration will be measured at fair value, with subsequent changes therem recognised in profit or loss

- Transaction. costs, other than share and debt issue costs, will be expensed as incurred

- Any pre-existing interest in the acquiree will be measured at fair value with the gain or loss recognised in proft or loss

- Any non-controlling (minarity) interest will be measured at either fair value, or at its proportionate interest in the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree, on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Revised AASB 3, which becomes mandatory for the Group's 31 March 2011 financial statements, will be applied
prospectively and therefore there will be no impact on prior periods in the Group's 2011 consolidated financial statement.

Amended AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (2008) requires accounting for changes in
ownership interests by the Group in a subsidiary, while maintaining control, to be recognised as an equity transaction.
When the Group loses control of subsidiary, any interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at fair value
-with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The amendments to AASB 127, which become mandatory for the Group's
31 March 2011 financial statements are not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

-21-




SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
: 31 March 2009
(continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(wj New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

AASB 8 Operating Segments introduces the "management approach” to segment reporting. AASB 8, which becomes
mandatory for the Group's 31 March 2010 financial statements, will required a change in the presentation on and
disclosure of segment information based on internal reports regularly reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision
Maker in order to assess each segment's performance and to allocate resources to them. This standard is not expected to
have a significant impact on the disclosure of the Group's operating segments.

Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements {2007) introduces the term total comprehensive income, which
represents changes in equity during a pefiod other than those changes resulting from transactions with owners in their
“capacity as owners. Total comprehensive income may be presented in either a single statement of comprehensive
income (effectively combining both the income statement and all non-owner changes in equity in a single statement) or, in
an income statement and a separate statement of comprehensive income. Revised AASB 101, which becomes
mandatory for the Group's 31 March 2010 financial statements, is expected to have a significant impact on the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. The Group plans to provide total comprehensive income in a single
statement of comprehensive income for its 2010 consolidated financial statements.

Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs removes the option to expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost cf
that asset. The revised AASB 123 will become mandatory for the Graup's 31 March 2010 financial statements and will not
have an impact.on the financial statements as the Group currently capitalises borrowing costs on qualifying assets. .

There are also other minor amendments and revisions to standards and interpretations as well as disclosure changes
issued during the year that have not been early adopted. As these changes are minor in nature or relate to disclosure
rather than measurement issues, they are not expected to result in any material changes to the Group's financial results.

The potential effect of these standards and interpretations is yet to be fully determined. However it is not expected that thi
new standards and interpretations will significantly affect the Group's financial report.
{x) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as par
of the expense.-

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
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3 Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates. The Group manages its exposure to these risks in accordance with its Treasury Risk Policy which is approved by
the Beard. The policy is reviewed annually or more regularly if required by a significant change in the Group s operations.
Any suggested changes are submitted to the Board for approval.

The objective of the Treasury Risk Policy is to document the Group's approach to treasury risk management and to
provide a framework for angoing evaluation and review of risk management techniques. The policy identifies each type of
financial risk to which the Group is exposed. The policy provides an analysis of each risk and the objective of and
techniques for managing the risk, including identifying and reporting risks to management’ and the Board.

Treasury evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operatmg units. The Treasury Risk
Palicy provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
mitigating foreign exchange, interest rate and credit risks, use of derwattve financial instruments and investing excess
liquidity.

The Treasury Risk Policy operates in conjunbtion with several other policies of the Group, including the:

- SPIAA Authority Manual which sets out the approvals required for such things as investment of surplus funds, execution
of hedging fransactions, borrowings and issue of guarantees and indemnities;

- SPIAA Treasury Operations Manual which sets out the day-to-day Treasury front office processes such as cash .
management and the operations of the Treasury back office, such as settlement processes and bank account operations;
and

- SPIAA Refinancing and Hedgmg Strategy which sets out the refnancmg and hedging strategies aver the relevant
financial period.

" Together these policies provide a financial risk management framewark which supports the Group’s objectives of finding
the right balance between risk and reward to enhance profitability and business performance while minimising current and
future exposures.

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to ‘manage its expesure to interest rate and foreign
currency risk, including:

- forward foreign exchange contracts:
- interest rate swaps; and
- cross-cuirency swaps.

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative
purposes.

Itis the Group’s policy to ensure, wherever possibile, that all hedging activities comply with the hedge accounting
requirements of AASBE 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. However, there may be instances
where it makes commercial and economic sense to enter into derivative transactions that do not achieve hedge
accounting. in these instances, under AASB 139 such derivatives must be classified as "held for trading" however this
classn" cation is not an indication of an intent to trade in derivative financial instruments.

The material financial risks associated with the Group's activities are each described below, together W|th details of the
Group’s policies for managing the risk.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of movements in interest rates on its borrowings. In addition, the regulated electricity
distribution businesses and gas distribution business revenues are impacted directly by changes in the rates of interest
relafing to each of their respective price review periods. This is a result of the “building block” approach where interest
rates are considered in the determination of the regulatory weighted average cost of capital and consequently regulated
revenues. The price review period is five years for gas and electricity distribution.

The objective of hedging activities carried cut by the Group in relation to these businesses is to minimise the exposure to
changes in interest rates by matching the actual cost of debt with the cost of debt assumed by the regulator when setting
the rate of returnfor the relevant business. The exposure is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and
floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swaps.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

The debt portfolio of the Group consists of both floating rate debt and fixed rate debt. The Group's interest rate hedging
policy is linked to debt allocated to the asset classes. Interest rate derivatives are used in order to maintain the percentage
of allocated fixed rate debt according to the asset classes (regulated assets, pipelines and asset management), as
determined by the Board. Hedging on the regulated assets is set with tenures linked to regulatory reset periods.

As at reportlng date, the Group had the following financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate risk that. are not
" designated in a cash flow hedging relationship:

Consolidated - Parent

2009 ’ 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 - $000
Financial assets )
Cash and cash-equivalents 42,203 81,550 9,898 22,097
Related party borrowings _ - - 3,028,375 2698375

- . ' 42,203 81,550 3,038,273 2720472

Financial ligbilities .
Borrowings not in a hedging relationship 1,020,000 4,195,000 3,285,000 5,320,000

1,020,000 4,195,000 3,285,000 5,320.000

Included in borrowings not in a hedging relationship are floating rate bank loans held by the Company, which are partially
hedged by interest rate swaps held by the Company and a subsidiary. In addition, $1.3 billion of effective economic
interest rate swaps held by a subsidiary were not designated in a cash flow hedging relationship in the period ended 31
March 2008. .

The interest.bearing related party borrowings of the Company are wholly receivable with entities within the Group and
therefore there is no exposure to interest rate risk in respect of these borrowings outside the Group. Borrowings frorm SPI
(Australia) Trust are non-interest bearing and principally relate to the acquisition of the subsidiaries within the Group (refer
to Note 25). )

The Group utilises interest rate swaps ("IRS") to manage its exposure to interest rate risk (refer note 13). Under interest
rate swaps, the Grolp agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on
agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on debt
held.

Due to the Group's interest rate risk management policies, the exposure at a corporate level to interest rate risk at any
point in time is significantly reduced. At 31 March 2009, 71% of the Group's variable interest rate debts are hedged.

As at reparting date, if interest rates had moved as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, post
tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Consolidated Parent
Net profit Equity (hedge  Net profit Equity (hedge
(after tax) reserve) (after tax) reserve)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

J'udgéments of reasonably bossible movements
2009 .
2.04 per cent increase* (28,672) 80,180 (20,782) ‘ 6,795
2.04 per cent decrease* 28,672 (87.,803) 20,782 (7,153)
2008 '
0.63 per cent increase* (3,087) (367} (8,324) -
0.83 per cent decrease* - (16,525} (18,322) 8,324 ) -

“With all other variables held constant, net of tax

The interest impact on the above sensutlwty analysis has increased with the 1.41 per cent widening in the movements in
rates from 2008 to 2009 and also an increase in the amount expressed
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

The judgements of reasonably possible movements were determined using statistical analysis of the 95th percentile best
and worst expected outcomes having regard to actual historical interest rate data aver the previous five years based on
the three month bank bill swap rate. Management considers that past movements are a transparent basis far determlnlng
reasonably possible movements in interest rates.

(b) Currencyrisk

The Group’s-policy is to eliminate all currency risk due to funding activities in offshore debt markets. Legacy foreign
currency denominated debt has been fully hedged by the use of cross currency swaps into AUD debt. Other foreign
exchange rate exposures arising from commitments in foreign currency purchases are managed within approved pollcy
parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.

The cbjective of the Group's currency risk management program is to eliminate material foreign exchange rlsk by utilising
various hedging techniques as approved by the Board. The Group therefore considers currency risk exposure to be
minimal.

The Group enters into cross-currency swaps to manage exposurés from foreign currency loans primarily in US dollars
(refer note 13). Itis the policy of the Group to cover 100 per cent of the exposure generated by these loans.

Under cross-currency swaps, the Group agrees to exchange specified principal and interest foreign currency amounts at
an agreed future date at a specified exchange rate. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates.

As at reporting date, the Group had cross currency swaps for its US dollar denominated borrowings. The notional amount
outstanding on cross currency swaps was $369.8 million (2008: $699.9 million). The maturity of these swaps matches the
maturity of the relevant US dollar denominated borrowings.

The Group also enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk in relation to specific
purchase orders (refer note 13). Itis the palicy of the Group to fully hedge currency exposures above a Board approved
threshold once the exposure is recognised. The derivative instrument used to hedge the exposure is entered into when
there is a high degree of certainty as to the nature of the exposure, including currency, amount and delivery date so as to
ensure a high level of effectivensss in cash flow hedging.

As at reporting date the Group had the following financial assets and financial liabilities exposed to currency risk that are
not designated in a cash flow hedging relationship:. :

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Financial liabilities : . , '
Payables with related parties 24,300 12,000 24,300, " 12,000
Borrowings not in a hedging relationship - 583,657 - -
24,300 595,657 24,300 12,000
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

Included in borrowings not in a hedging relationship are fixed rate foreign currency debt securities held by a subsidiary,
which are fully hedged by effective economic cross currency swaps held by a subsidiary not designated in a cash flow
hedging relationship in the period ended 31 March 2008. :

As at reporting date, if the Australian Dollar had moved against each of the currencies as illustrated in the table below, with
- all other variables held constant, post tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Consolidated Parent
Net profit Equity (hedge Net profit Equity (hedge
(after tax) reserve) (after tax) reserve)
$'000 $'000 ’ $'000 $'000

Judgements of reasonably possible movements
2009
United States Dollar ‘ .
16 cent increase* . : (117} (1,851) - -
16 cent decrease* : ’ 188 3,001 - -
Singapore Dollar _ _
2 cent.increase* . 278 - 278 -
2 cent decrease* (288) - (288) -
2008 -
United States Dollar ) ‘ ’
10 cent increase* : - (517) - -
10 cent decrease” : - 277 - -
Singapore Dollar '
10 cent increase* } 488 - 488 -
10 cent decrease* } (572) - (572) -

*With all other variables held constant

The judgements of reasonably possible movements were determined using statistical analysis of the 95th percentile best
and worst expected outcomes having regard to actual historical exchange rate data over the previous five years.
Management considers that past movements are a transparent basis for determining reasonably possible movements in
exchange rates. '

International borrowing exchange risk is managed using cross currency swaps at 100 per cent of borrowings at inception
date.

(c) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group and arises from the Group’s financial assets, comprising cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables
and derivative financial instruments.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults (refer note 11). The Group’s exposure and the
credit ratings of its counterparties are continucusly monitored and the agareqgate values of transactions concluded are
spread amongst approved counterparties. The Group therefore considers credit risk exposure to be minimal.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because thes
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Accounts receivable consist of a number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable to ensure exposure to bad debts is
minimised. ' '
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3 Financial risk management (contmued)

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group targets a minimum net liquidity, defined as available short term funds and committed financing facmtles As at
reporting date, the Group had the following committed fi inancing facilities available:

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 : 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financing facilities (face value)
Unsecured working capital, reviewed annually: .
- Amount used 55,000 - ‘ 55,000 -
- Amount unused 95,000 . 95,000 -
Unsecured bank loan facility with various maturity dates '
" and which may be extended by mutual agreement:
- Amount used 70,000 - 70,000 -
- Amount unused 130,000 - 130,000 -
Unsecured syndicated bank loan facility
- Amount used . i 3,400,000 5,320,000 3,400,000 5,320,000
- Amount unused - 155,000 - 155,000

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, committed banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities and by continucusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

The Group’s liquidity management policies include Board approved guidelines covering the maximum volume of long term
debt maturing in any one year, the minimum number of years over which debt maturities are to be spread and the timing of
refinancing.

The liquidity managément policies ensure that the Group has a well diversified portfolic of debt, in terms of maturity and
source, which significantly reduces reliance on any one source of debt in any one particular year. In addition, the
investment grade credit rating of the Group ensures ready access to both domestic and offshore capital markets.

Liquidity risk is managed by the Group based on expectéd net inflows and outflows from financial assets and financial
liabilities. The following table summarises the maturities of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities based on the
remaining earliest contractual maturities at carrying value.

The Group's $3.4 billion syndicated facility agreement and $200 million bilateral facility (of which $70 million was drawn
down as at 31 March 2009) are guaranteed by Singapore Power Limited. The guarantor arrangement provides the group
‘with access to a lower cost of debt than it would otherwise receive as a stand alone market participant.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

Group - At 31 March 2009

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency swaps

_ Cross-currency swaps - receive
Cross-currency swaps - pay
Forward foreign currency contracts

Financial liabilities

Variable interest rate loans

Fixed interest rate loans .

Loans from related parties - Trust
Loans*®

Payables

Interest rate swaps

Forward foreign currency contracts

Net maturity

Group - At 31 March 2008

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Interest rate swaps

Forward foreign currency contracts

Financial liabilities

Variable interest rate loans

Fixed interest rate loan

Loans from related parties - Trust
Loans*

Payables

Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency swaps
Cross-currency swaps - receive
Cross-currency swaps - pay
Forward foreign currency contracts

Net maturity

Undiscounted contractual cash flows

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

Carrying Lessthan1 Between 1 Between 2 Qver b years Total
Amounts year and 2 years and 5 years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
42,203 42,203 - - - 42,203
301,427 289,187 - - 12,240 301,427
864 (881) 1,209 604 - 932
78,031
24,523 24,523 73,570 433,046 605,662
(26,457) (28,457) (79,444) {450,736) (583,094)
161 160 - - - 160
422 686 328,735 (725) (5.270) 44 550 367,290
3,506,648 252,664 142,309 3,506,330 - 3,901,303
682,195 308,805 24,523 73,570 457,828 864,726
4,500,017 4.506,017 - - - 4,500,577
' 280,580 280,580 - - - 280,380
118,868 93,335 29,470 - - 122,202
167 155 252 - - 454
9,088.475 5,435 556 196,554 3,579,900 457828  _ 9,669,222
(5,106,821} {197,279) _(3,585,170) (413,278) _ (9,302.548)
Undiscounted contractual cash flows
Carrying Lessthan 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years Total
Amounts year and 2 years and 5 years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'00C
81,550 81,550 - - - 81,550
296,718 289,918 - - 6,800 296,718
25,452 5,034 9,001 3,378 - 17,413
83 88 - - - 88
403,803 376,590 9.001 3378 6,800 395,769
5,320,000 5,495,622 - - - . 5,495,622
858,657 309,254 293,361 55,082 361,133 1,018,830
2,106,484 2,108,484 - - - 2,106,484
304,642 304,642 - - - 304,642
1,555 5,712 4,394 1,372 - 11,478
79,407 )
(299,407) (18,360) (55,082) (380,013) (752,862)
369,347 26,457 79,444 477 192 952,440
211 217 - - - 217
8.670.956 8.291.871 305.852 80.816 458,312 9.136.851
{7.915,281) (296,851} ____{77.438) {451,512)
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

Parent - At 31 March 2009

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Interest rate swaps

Financial liabilities

Variable interest rate loan

Loans from related parties - Trust
Loans*

Payables

Net maturity

Parent - At 31 March 2008

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Financial liabilities
Variable interest rate loan
. Loans from related parties - Trust
Loans*
Payables

Net maturity

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Lid
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

Undiscounted contractual cash flows

{continued)

Carrying Less than 1 Between 1 Between2 Over5 years Total
Amounts year and 2 years and 5 years :
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 - $'000
. 9,898 9,898 - - - 9,898
5,605,121 94,098 - - 5,511,023 5,605,121
864 (881) 1,209 604 - 932
5615883 103,115 1,209 604 . 5511.023 5.615,951
3,451,648 197,664 142 309 3,506,330 - 3,846,303
4,500,017 4,500,017 - - - 4,500,017
686.921 66.921 - - - 66,021
8.018.586 4764 602 142,309 3,506,330 - .__8.413.241
{4,661,487) (141,100) _ (3,505,726) 5511.023 {2,797,290)
Undiscounted contractual cash flows
Carrying Lessthan1 Between Between 2 Over 5 years Total
* Amounts year and 2 years and 5 years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
22,097 22,097 - - - 22 no7
5132575 94 938 - - 5.037.637 5 132 K7F
5154 672 117.035 - - 5 037 637 5154672
5,320,000 5,495,622 - ; - 5,495 62
2,106,484 2,106 484 - - - 2,106,184
88.411 88411 - - - 8841
7.514.895 7,690,517 - - - 7,690,517
(7.573.482) - - 5.037.637 (2.535,845)

*The Trust Loans are an interest free subordinated debt issued to the Company by SPI (Australia) Trust. The loan is

repayable on demand, but a letter of undertaking has been received by its immediate holding company not to call back the
loan if doing so it will cause the Company to be unable to pay its liabilities in the 12 months subsequent to the
authorisation date of these financial statements.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(e} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The icllowing table details the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Consolidated

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables '

Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps
Forward foreign currency contracts

Financial liabilities
Payables
Debt securities
_Trust loans
Variable interest rate loans
Interest rate swaps
Cross currency swaps
Forward foreign currency confracts

Parent

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Interest rate swaps

Financial liabilities
Payables

Trust loans

Variable interest rate loans

SPI (Australia} Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

Carrying amount Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
42,203 81,550 42,203 81,550
301,427 296,718 301,427 296,718
864 25,452 864 25,452
78,031 - 78,031 -
161 83 161 83
422 686 403.803 422 6286 403.803
280,580 304,642 230,580 304,642
682,195 858,657 791,998 909,256
4,500,017 2,106,484 4,500,017 2,106,484
3,506,648 5,320,000 3,506,648 5,320,00C
118,868 1,555 118,868 1,555
- 79,407 - - 79,407
167 211 167 211
9.088.475 8,670,956 9,198,278 8.721,555
Carrying amount . Fair value
2009 . 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
9,898 22,007 9,898 22,097
5,605,121 5,132,575 5,605,121 5,132,575
864 - 864 -
5.615.883 5,154 672 5,615,883 5.154.672
66,921 88,411 66,921 88,411
4,500,017 2,106,484 4,500,017 2,106,484
3,506.648 5,320.000 3,506,648 5,320 000
8,073.586
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(f} Capital management

"The Group is comritted to an optimal capital structure while maintaining financial flexibility and investment grade credit
ratings. In order to achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, increase or decrease debt levels.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the financial year.
The Company and its subsidiaries are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement.

The current capital structure of the company is presented below:

2009 2008

Notes $'000 $'000
Description
Current Liabilities :
Trust Loans from a related company . 25 4,500,017 2,106,484 Refer (i)
Debt Securities - Fixed rate notes : ‘ 24 275,000 - Refer (jii}
Debt Securities - US$250m senior notes 24 - 274,372 Refer (i)
Working Capital Facilities : - 23 55,000 - Refer (v)
Bridge Loan Facility . 23 - 5,320,000 Refer (iv)
Non Current Liabilities
Syndicated Loan Facility 27 3,400,000 - Refer (iv)
Bilateral Facilities ) 27 70,000 - Refer (v)
Debt Securities - US$280m Senior notes 27 407,195 309,285 Refer (i)
Debt Securities - Fixed rate notes 27 - 275,000 Refer (jii)
Total Borrowings ) 8,707,212 8.285 141

i) Share capital
The share capital of the company consists of 2 fully paid ordinary shares at $1.

ii)Trust Loans ’ ‘ :

These loans relate to subordinated debts issued to the Company by SPI (Australia) Trust, a wholly owned entity of
Singapore Power International Pte Ltd (“SPI"). These loans are classified as current debt as they are repayable on
demand, despite being non-interest bearing and subordinated to existing debt facilities. They are therefore akin to equity
provided by SP| to the Company.

The Directors of SPI have confirmed their intention not to call upon the Trust Loans for at least the next 12 months if in
doing so will cause the Company to be unable to meet its debts and obligations as and when they fall due.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

'iii) Debt securities
Debt securities relate to the following:

(a) Senior notes cofnprising:

- US$250 million bend issued to mature in April 2008. The bond was issued at a fixed rate of 6.40%. Cross currency
swaps were used to convert the US dolfar obligations to fixed interest rate Australian dollar obligations. The principal
was repaid in April 2008. ‘ : '

- US$150 million bond issued té mature in Septem_bér 2015. The bond was issued at a fixed rate of 5.30%. Cross
currency swaps have been used to convert the US dollar obligations to fixed interest rate Australian dollar obligations.

- US$130 million bond issued to mature in April 2018. The bond was issued at a fixed rate of 6.85%. Cross currency
swaps have been used to convert the US dollar obligations to fixed interest rate Australian doliar obligations.

(b) Fixed rate notes comprising $275 million of fixed rate medium term notes to public investors. The maturity date of this
program is September 2009 and the interest rate is 6.75%

iv} Bridge loan facility and syndicated loan facility )

The bridge loan facility was unsecured and interest as paid on a floating rate basis. The facility was fully repaid on 31 July
2008. For that part of the financial period up until 31 July 2008, the floating rate including margin was in the range of
7.52% - 7.99% (March 2008: 7.00% - 7.99%). Interest rate swaps were used to partially convert the floating interest
obligations to fixed interest obligations. ] . .

The syndicated loan facility is unsecured and interest is paid on a floating rate basis. Over the year to March 2009 the
floating rate including margin was in the range of 4.06% - 8.56%. The total facility amount is $3,400 million comprising a
$2,400 million term loan and a $1,000 million revolving loan, both maturing in July 2011. Interest rate swaps are used to
partially convert the floating interest obligations to fixed interest obligations.

v) Working capital and bilateral facilities

The working capital facilities are unsecured and interest is paid on a floating rate basis. - Over the year to March 2009 the
floating rate including margin was in the range of 3.76% - 7.99%. The total facility is $150 million and matures in August
2009. ltis the intention of the parties to the loan to extend the maturity for a further year.

The bilateral facilities are unsecured and interest is paid on a floating rate basis. The total facility amount is $200 million,
consisting of a $100 million term loan (maturing in October 2011) and a $100 miillion revolving loan (maturing in October
2013). : )

(9) Financial Covenants

The terms of certain financing arrangements contain financial covenants that require maintenance of specified interest”
coverage ratios. ) :

The Group regularly monitors compliance with its financial covenants and reports to its banking syndicate on a bi-annual
basis and was in compliance with its financial covenants throughout the period.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results: Accounting estimates and assumptions where changes in those estimates and
assumptions could result in a significant change in the recognised amounts of assets and liabilities are detailed befow:

(i) Estimated recoverable amount of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and associated tangible assets

For the purpose of impairment testing on the cash-generating units (“CGUs") containing goodwill, gocdwill is allocated to
. the Group's operating divisions at the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is' monitored for internal -
management purposes. ' :

The récoverable amounts of the CGUs were based on _the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and their value in use.

The Group reasonably expects to have liabilities under the National Carben Pollution Reduction Scheme as a result of its
ownership of infrastructure assets. Management has not incorporated the potential impact of these liabilities into the 20
year cash flow projections as it is too early; at this stage, to quantify the impacts.

Recoverable amount was determined by discounting future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of the units
‘and was based on the following key assumptions:

1. Cash flows were projected based on the 5 year business plans. From these business plans, 20 year cash flow models
were extrapolated using growth assumptions for revenue, expenditure and capital expenditure. Management believes that
this forecast period was justified due to the long term nature of the unit's activities.

2. For regulated assets, the growth assumption is primarily driven by the assumptions in the regulatory building block
models with growth being the function of regulated asset base and the allowable return from the regulater. For non-
regulated assets, the growth is largely determined by contractual parameters and the projected Australian Consumer Price
Index (CPI). Expenditure growth for all assets is largely indexed to the projected Australian CPl. The annual growth rate
applied to the units was 2.6%.

3. Cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the assets. Depending on the nature of the assets, the discount rates applied in determining
the recoverable amounts of the units range between 8.0% and 9.3% per annum.

(i) Fair values in business combinations . .

The Group accounts for business combinations using the purchase method of accounting. This method requires the
application of fair values for both the consideration given and the assets and liabilities acquired. The calculation of fair
values is often predicated on estimates and judgements including future cashflows, revenue streams and value in use
calculations. The determination of the fair values may remain provisional for up to 12 months from the date of acquisition
due to the time necessarily required to obtain independent valuations of individual assets and to complete assessments of
provisions.
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(continued)

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(i) Income taxes

The tax expense and deferred tax balances assume certain tax outcomes and values of assets in relation to the
application of the tax consolidation regime. These outcomes affect factors such as the quantification and utilisation of tax
losses, capital allowance deductions and the taxation treatment of transactions between members of the Group.

The tax expense assumes that the Group can carry forward income tax losses. Ifthere is a change in the majority
underlying ownership of the Group as a result of a reduction in Singapore Power Limited's ownership position, this
assumption may cease to be applicable. .

The Group has taken positions in relation to the income tax and capital gains tax consequences of the acquisition by SPI
(Ausiralia) Assets Pty Ltd of the Alinta assets. This involves the exercise of judgements surrounding the calculation of tax
bases for the Group assets and liabilities. Furthermore, the potential reversal of temporary differences also requires the
use of estimates of future profitability, availability of taxable profits on both revenue and capital accounts and potential

- future changes in tax bases. :

Assumptions are also made about the application of income tax legislation. These assumptions are subject to risk and
uncertainty and there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations which may impact the amount of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in the balance sheet. In these circumstances, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and liabilittes may change resulting in an impact on the earnings of the Group or on the fair value of
the tax assets acquired.

In addition, deférred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences. “

{iv} Recognition of deferred tax

The Group applies the criteria stated in Australian Accounting Standard AASB 112 Income Taxes (*AASB 112") with
regards to the calculation and recognition of deferred tax assets. The application of the AASB 112 criteria involves the
exercise of judgement surrounding the calculation of accounting and tax bases for.the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Furthermore, the potential reversal of temporary differences also requires the use of estimates of future profitability,
. availability of taxable profits/losses on both revenue and capital account and potential future changes in accounting and -
tax bases. . '

of revenue losses is subject to estimation and judgement. :

In particular, the expectation of the availability of future taxable income against which deferred tax assets arising in respect

(v} Tax consolidation reseis ‘

The Group resets tax bases and values for assets and liabilities within tax consolidated groups as and when those tax
consolidated groups are formed due to acquisitions or disposals of entities. The calculations are complex in nature. They
are performed to attribute values as part of this process and are subject to a degree of estimation, judgement and
finalisation. ' :

(vi) Leases :

The Group has considered a number of contractual arrangements i applying the accounting policy in note 2(s). The
assessment of these contractual arrangements requires a degree of judgement as to whether the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of an asset are substantially transferred to other entities. The classification of a contractual
arrangement could materially change the balance sheet of the Group.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)

(vii) Derivatives : ‘
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes. . . ]

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quloted market prices ‘at the measurement date.
The quoted market price used for financial instruments held by the Group is the current bid price.

Derivatives are used only for risk management strategies and are not activelyrtraded.
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

« the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices: ‘

+ the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis; and.

+ the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available use is
made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments.

Appropriate transaction costs are included in the determination of net fair value.

(viii)  Accrued revenue

Revenue accrual estimates are made to account for the unbified period between the end user’s last billing date and the
end of the accounting period. The accrual relies on detailed analysis of customers' histarical consumption patterns, which
take into account base usage, sensitivity to prevailing weather conditions and consumption growth. The results of this
analysis are applied for the number of days and weather conditions over the unbilled period.

{ix) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment _ )

Depreciation is provided for on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding land.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the net cost of each asset over its estimated useful life
to its estimated residual valute. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed }
annually. Assumptions are made regarding the useful lives and residual values based on the regulatory environment and
technological developments. These assumptions are subject to risk and there is the possibility that changes in
circumstances will alter expectations. .

{x) Contract intangibles

As part of ascribing fair values to assets acquired under business combinations, values were attributed to the Group's
identifiable contract intangibles. These values were derived from independent valuations and predicated on estimates and
judgements including future cash flows, revenue streams and value in use calculations.

(xi) Defined benefits

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of dssumptions based on the most recent actuarial assessment performed to the period end. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for defined benefit plans include the discount rate. Any changes in
these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of the defined benefit cbligations.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

-35-



SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
.31 March 2009

{continued)

5 Segment information

(a) Description of segments

Business segments .
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Electricity distribution
The electricity distribution network carries electricity from the high voltage transmission network to end-users.

The Group charges reta:lers and some large customers regulated rates for the use of the d|str1but|on network. The
electricity distribution segment does not purchase or sell electricity.

Gas disfribution -

The gas distribution network carries natural gas to commercial and residential end-users and earns revenues at the
regulated rates for the distribution services provided by its network. The Group charges retailers and some large
customners regulated rates for the use of the distribution network. The gas distribution segment does not purchase or sell
gas. : :

Gas fransmission ‘
The gas transmission network transports gas through gas pipelines.

Asset management services

Asset management services provide maintenance and construction services to the energy distribution, power generation
and gas transmission segments, as well as to external customers. The segment also provides financial, information
technology and other office support services to the energy distribution, power generation and gas transmission segmenits.

Energy Invesiments
The energy investments segment comprises the Group's share of equity accounted investments in energy, water and othe:
investments in energy assets. .

Geographical segments
The Group operates in predominantly one geographical segment, which is Australasia.
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5 Segment information (continued)

{(b) - Primary reporting format - business segments

Inter-segment

Electricity Gas Gas Asset Energy eliminations/

2009 distribution  distribution transmission Management Investment unallocated Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Segment revenue .
Sales to external customers 229,757 372,079 133,858 546,698 - - 1,282,392
Intersegment sales (note {ii}} - - - 531,568 _ - (531,568) -
Total sales revenue 229,757 372,079 133,858 1,078,266 - (531,568) 1,282,392
Other revenue 2,133 1,217 - 54 - 16,436 19,840
Total segment revenue 231,890 373,296 133.858 _ 1,078,320 - (515,132) _ 1,302,232
Segment result : 104.073 181,364 92.777 81,743 51,446 {437 181) 74,222
Profit before income tax : 74,222
Income tax expense : . . (27,423}
Profit for the year ‘ 46.799
Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets 904,188 2,980,168 1,796,672 544 350 867,789 (517,481} 6,575,686
Segment goodwill 212,239 363,912 782,750 1,118,896 129,859 - 2,607,65C
Segment iiabilities 410,607 618,981 1,035,148 932,054 - 6,364,010 9,360,800

Other segment information

Investments in associate and Jomt : ‘
venture partnership - - - - 867,789 - 867,789

Share of net profits of associate and joint .

venture partnership - - - - 51,446 - 51,446
Acquisitions of property, plant and ]

equipment and intangibles (97,604} (94,923) (48,194} (18,226) - (149,187} (408,134}
Depreciation and amortisation expense (17,898} (49,349)  (18,855) (14,021} - ' (70,876} (170,999
Net finance costs ' - - 563 (12,740} - - (325,755)  (337,932)
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5 Segment information (continued)

Inter-

(c) Notes to and forming part of the segment information

(it  Accounting policies

segment
Electricity Gas Gas Asset Energy  eliminations/ -
2008 distribution  distribution transmission Management Investment unallocated Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Segment revenue :
Sales to external customers 127,866 . 180,733 60,858 249,857 - - 619,314
Intersegment sales (note (i)} - - - 215,370 - {215,370} -
Total sales revenue 127,866 180,733 60,858 465,227 - (215,370} 619,314
Other revenue 1617 434 - 203 - 9,654 11.808
Total segment revenue 129,483 181,167 60,858 465,430 - {205,816) 631,122
Segment resuit 59293 73749 33,347 46,800 23.729 (279,331) {42.413)
Loss before income tax {42,413)
Income tax benefit 11,466
Loss for the period {30.947)
Segment assets and liabilities .
Segment assets 872,808 2,941,208 1872773 337,456 989,374 (646,818) 6,366,801
Segment goodwill 48,116 141,394 1,007,118 1,343,946 49,397 - 2,589,971
Segment liabilities 458,392 719,782 1,020,557 630,824 - 6,182,103 9,011,658
Other segment information
Investments in associate and joint
venture partnership - - - - 989,374 - 989,374
‘Share of net profits of associate and joint
venture partnership - - - - 23,729 - 23,729
 Acquisitions of property, plant and ]
equipment and intangibles (39,780) (64,364}  (18,175) (2,028) - (3,125)  {127,481)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (10,525) (27,501} (12,375} (5,171) - (30,957) (86,529}
Net finance costs - - (710) 5,922 - {229,416) (224,204,

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the Group as disclosed in note 2 and
Accounting Standard AASB 114 Segment Reporting.

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those that are directly attributable to a segment and the relevant
portion that can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment
and consist primarily of operating cash, receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment and goodwill and other
intangible assets, net of related provisions. While most of these assets can be directly atiributable to individual segments,
the carrying amounts of certain assets used jointly by segments are allocated based on reasonable estimates of usage.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other creditors, employee benefits and deferred income.

Inter-segment fransfers

(i)

Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. Such transfers are priced on an "arm’s-

length” basis and are eliminated on consolidation.
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6 Revenue
~ Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
From continuing operations
Services ' 1,254,625 607,793 . .
Services from related parties o 14,832 - 2,718 - -
Customer coniributions 12,935 8.803 - -
1,282,392 619,314 - -

Services revenue includes revenue earned from the distribution and transmission of gas, distribution of electricity and
rendering of asset management services.

7 Other income

Consolidated . Parent
2009 ' 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net gain on sale of investments : 53 245 - -
Other income . 3,351 12,078 - 23,000
Other income from related parties - 16,436 9.485 23,236 23,425
19,840 : 11,808 23,236 46.425
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8 Expenses

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 - 2008
$'000 $'000 ’ $'000 $'000

Other expenses include: B :

Foreign exchange losses ) , {1,576) (10) (1,891) -

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and :

equipment {4.844) (1,082) - -

: (6,420) (1,092) {1,891) -

Finance costs

Interest and finance charges paid/payable on

borrowings ‘ (341,278) (287,896) (292,347) (248,422)

Interest expense to related parties . (61) - {61) -

Change in fair value of financial assets/liabilities

designated at fair value through profit or loss (3,755) - - -

Capitalised finance charges 4,920 1,232 - o -

Unwind of discount on make good provisions . {1,598) - - -
Finance income:

Interest income 7,957 15,728 2,036 2,311

Interest income from related parties 1,429 - 209,057 111,018

Change in fair value of financial assets/liabilities '

designated at fair value through profit or loss 5,381 - - -
Effective economic hedge instruments:

Change in fair value of effective economic hedge :

instruments that did not qualify for hedge accounting - : 46,732 - : -

Unwind of effective economic hedge instruments

that did not qualify for hedge accounting {10,927} - - -

(337,932) - (224 204) (81,315) (135.093)
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9 Income tax

(a) Income tax

Current tax
Deferred tax

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax
expense/(benefit) to prima facie tax payable

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before income
tax expense/(benefit) *
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2008 - 30%)
Tax eifect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)
in calcuiating taxable income: ‘

Non assessable income

Non deductible expenses

-Non assessable capital gain

Tax base uplift :

(c) Amounts recognised directly in equity

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the
reporting period and not recognised in net profit or loss
but directly debited or credited to equity.

Defined benefit plans

Financial instruments

10 Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

SPI (Australia} Assets Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements

31 March 2009
(continued)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 ~ %000
19,343 57,310 20,527 - 35,038
(46,766) (45.844) 18.412 -
(27.423) 11,466 38,939 35.038
74,222 (42 413) {65,997) (93.791)
- {22,267) . 12,724 19,799 28,138
2,269 543 - -
(7,425) (1,801) - -
- ) - - 6,900
- - 19,140 -
{27,423) 11,466 38.939 35,038
(19,884) (10,948) - -
(38,765) (1,388) 259 -
(58.649) {12.334) 259 -
Consolidated Parent
2009 - 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
42,203 81,550 9,898 22 097
42203 ‘81 550
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11 Current assets Q'Reéeivables

Trade receivables . ‘
Less: provision for doubtful debts

Other receivables from related parties
Other receivables
Accrued revenue

Terms and conditions

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

{continued)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
112,519 77.478 - -
{6,489) {(1.961) - -
106,030 75,517 - -
13,529 657 84,793 52,776
43,762 77,149 5,106 34,859
125,866 136,595 4,199 7.303
289,187 289,018 94,098 94 938

The average credit period varies depending on the nature of the accounts receivable balance:

- related parties range between 7 to 14 days;

- retailers are 10 business days; and

- external customers range between 20 to 30 days.

All accounts receivable are non-interest bearing.

Debts that are past 91 days are provided for based on past experience. Specific provisioning is assessed on a monthly

basis.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

Gross:

Not past due

Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 60 days
Past dug 61 - 90 days
Past due 91 - 180 days
More than 180 days

The majority of debts that are past due relate to regu

retailing.

Allowance:

Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 61 - 90 days
Past due 91 - 180 days
More than 180 days

Consolidated Parent

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
43,074 45,038 - -
17,230 21,980 - -
6,834 1,817 - -
5,353 487 - -
24,443 1,087 - - -
15,585 7.059 - -
77.478 - -

112.519

lated counterparties in the energy industry, from disfribution to

Consclidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 3'000 $'000 $'000
{232) - - -
(19 - - -
(526) (166) - -
(5,717) (1,795} - -
(6,489) (1,961) - -
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11 Current assets - Receivables (continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

At beginning

Subsidiaries acguired

Additional allowance recognised
Amounts utilised

At end

12 Current assets - Inventories

Construction, maintenance stocks and general purpose

materials

13 Derivative financial instruments

Current assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts

Non-current assets

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges
Cross currency swap contracts - cash flow hedges
Total derivative financial instrument assets

Current liabilities
Cross currency swap contracts - cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts

Non-current liabilities :

Cross currency swap contracts - cash flow hedges
Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges
Total derivative financial instrument liabilities

(a} Financial risk management objectives

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements

31 March 2009
(continued)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(1,961) - - -
- (2,586) - -
{4,903) - {165) - -
375 790 - -
(6,489) (1.961) - -
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
26,254 16,387 - -
26,254 16,387 - -
~ Consolidated . Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 ~ $000 $'000
161 83 - -
864 25,452 864 -
78,031 - - -
79.056 - 25 535 864 -
- 57,417 - -
167 211 - -
- 23,545 - -
118,868 - - -
119.035 81.173 - -

Details of the Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in note 3 of the financial

statements.
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13 Derivative financial instruments {continued)
(b} - Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methads adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

(c) Interest rate risk management

The following table summarises the designations of interest rate swaps used to manage interest rate exposure:

Derivatives
notina
Cash flow hedging
hedges relationship Total
$'000 - $'000 $'000
2009 - Consolidated
Interest rate swaps :
Financial assets . 864 - 864
Financial liabilities , 118,868 - 118,868
2009 - Parent
Interest rate swaps
Financial assets : 864 ' - 864
2008 - Consolidated
Interest rate swaps .
Financial assets - 25,452 25,452

Financial liabilities ) 1,555 - 1,555
The parent entity did not utilise interest rate swaps in 2008. '

Unrealised losses after tax in respect of interest rate swaps of $82,602,970 (2008 : $16,728,089 gain) have arisen since
the inception of these swaps. Of this amount, $99,331,059 has arisen since their designation as hedges and has been
deferred in the hedging reserve (refer Note 33(a)) to the extent the hedge is effective and will be released when the
underlying transaction impacts profit or loss.

(d} Foreign currency risk management

The following table summarises the designations of forelgn exchange contracts used to manage foreign currency
exposure:

Weighted ‘
average Foreign )
exchange currency Carrying Less than 1 More than §
rate contract value amount year 1-5 years years
{  FC$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2009 - Consolidated only
Forward foreign currency
coniracis : _ '
Buy USD (United States Dollar) 0.6757 9,606 ‘ 7 11 (252) -
. Buy GBP {British Pound) 0.4582 130 (13} (6) - -
2008 - Consolidated only '
Forward foreign currency
contracts ' .
Buy USD (United States Dollar) 0.8618 3,058 (211) (217) - -

Buy EUR (European Euro) ‘ 0.6052 ' 1,298 83 88 - -
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13 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following table summarises the designations of the hedging instruments used to manage currency risk:

Derivatives
notina
Cash flow hedging ,
hedges relationship Total
$'000 $'000 ~$'000

2009 - Consolidated only
Forward foreign currency contracts .
Financial assets 161 - 161
Financial liabilities ‘ 167 - 167
Cross currency swaps )
Financial assets 78,031 - 78,031
2008 - Consolidated only
Forward foreign currency contracts
Financial assets 83 - 83
Financial liabilities : 211 - 211
Cross currency swaps . . .
Financial liabilities ' - 79,407 79,407

The parent entity does not utilise forward foreign currency contracts or Cross-currency swaps.

As at reporting date unrealised losses after tax in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts of $4,483 (2008: $89,308
loss) have been deferred in the hedging reserve to the extent the hedge is effective and will be released when the
underlying transaction impacts profit or loss.

Unrealised gains after tax in respect of cross currency swaps of $70,013,989 (2008 : $55,584,908 loss) have arisen since
the inception of these swaps and recognised in the hedging reserve (refer Note 33(a)) to the extent the hedge is effective.
Of this amount $68,866,893 has been transferred to the .income statemént and relates to the spot foreign exchangs
component of the contract. This gain directly offsets the foreign exchange loss recognised on the underlying hedged USD
bond liability. The remaining portion, $1,147,096 continues to be deferred in the hedging reserve and will be released
when the underlying transaction impacts profit or loss.

14 Current assets - Current tax receivables

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tax refunds receivable 58.376 77,748 65,128 90 681

58,376 77.748 65,128 90,681
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{continued)

15 Current assets - Other current assets

Consolidated . Parent .
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Prepayments : : '10,& 6,353 - -
' 10,295 6,353 - ‘ -
16 Non-current assets - Receivables
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Loan to subsidiaries - - 5,505,583 5,037,637
Loan to associates ‘ N 12,240 6,800 5,440 -
12,240 6.800 5,511,023 5.037 637

17 Non-current assets - Investments accounted for using the equity method

Consolidated ‘ Parent
2009 - 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Shares in associates (note 39) _ 218,539 248,690 271,030 265,760
Interest in joint venture partnership (note 40) 649,250 740,684 - -
: 867,789 889,374 271,030 265,760
18 Non-current assets - Other financial assets
| Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 . - 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Investment in subsidiaries (note 38) - - ©2,515,998 _ 2417451

- - 2,515,998 2.417 451
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SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

20 Non-current assets - Intangible assets (continued)

Carrying amount of indefinite life intangible assets

The distribution licences are considered to have an indefinite life for the following reasons:

- the licences have been issued in perpetuity provided the licensee achieves certain regulatory licence requirements;
- the Group monitors its performance against those licence requirements and ensures that they are met; and

- the Group intends to continue to maintain the networks for the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite lives is presented below:

2009 2008
$'000 : $'000
Jemena Electricity Network 10,516 10,516
10,516 10,518
‘21 Current liabilities - Payables
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Trade payables 6,927 20,059 - -
Accrued expenses 128,512 144,425 2,355 -
Interest payable 14,009 70,156 4,133 50,974
Other payables 81,523 57,339 1,819 . 2,073
Other payables to related parties 49,609 12,663 58,614 35,364
: . 280,580 304,642 66,921 88411
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SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2008

(continued)

22 Current liabilities - Provisions

Consolidated Parent

2009 - 2008 . 2009 2008
$'000 _ $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefits ' 57,422 35,083 . -
Environmental (refer to note 29) 380 636 - -
Acquisition costs (refer to note 29) 2,545 23,379 37,145 57,979
Earnout agreement(refer to note 29) 8,870 - - -
Stamp duty (refer to note 29) 1,062 - 1,062 -
Other (refer to note 29) 18.520 155,889 5,917 -
88,799 214 987 44,124 57 979
23 Current liabilities - Interest bearing liabilities
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bank/MWorking Capital Facility 55,000 5,320,000 55,000 5,320,000
55,000 5,320,000 55,000 5,320,000

For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 3. Details of
financing facilities utilised/unutilised are also contained in note 3. o

24 Current liabilities - Interest bearing debt securities

Consolidated : Parent
2009 -2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 - $'000 $'000
Debt Security - Fixed Rate Notes - 275,000 - - -
Debt Security - Senior Notes - 274,372 - -
275,000 274 372 - -

For more information about the Grdup's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 3. Details of
financing facilities utilised/unutilised are also contained in note 3.
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8Pl (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd -

Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009
(continued)

25 Current liabilities - Trust loans

Consolidated ~ Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 . $'000
Loans from SPI (Australia) Trust 4,500,017 2,106,484 4,500,017 2,106,484
: : 4,500,017 2,106,484 - 4,500,017 2,106,484

For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 3. Detalls of
financing facilities utilised/unutilised are also contamed in note 3.

26 Current liabilities - Other current liabilities

Consolidated . Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Deferred income ) ‘ 7,395 2521 - - -
Advance receipts : 1.359 4,321 - -
’ 8,754 6,842 - -

27 Non-current liabilities - Interest bearing liabilities

Consolidated Parent
2009 © 2008 2009 © 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Unsecured . ‘ : : '
Bank loans 3,470,000 - - 3,470,000 -
Less: debt issuance costs (18,352) - © (18,352} -
Debt securities : 407,195 584 285 - -

3,858,843 584 285 3,451,648 -

For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 3. Details of
- financing facilities utilised/unutilised are also contained in note 3.
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SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
) 31 March 2009
(continued)

28 Deferred tax
Consolidated : Parent

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 " $'000 $'000 $'000 .
The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to: .
Property, plant and equipment {103,121} 55,754 - -
Other financial assets ) . 22,375 {21,267) (259) -
Intangible assets _ (16,240} (135,700) - -
[nvestment in associates (18,620} (22,522) 19,140 - :
Tax losses . : 99,115 70,243 99,115 70,243
Project costs : 3,513 20,137 - C -
Employee provisions ' 18,835 17,130 - -
Unbilled income : ' A - (15,071) - -
Other items 34,810 25,368 {728) _ -
Total deferred tax assets/{liabilities) _ 40,667 (5.928) 117,268 70,243
Movements:
Balance at heginning (5,928) - 70,243 -
(Charged)/credited to the income statement (46,766) (45,844) 18,412 -
(Charged)icredited to equity '58,649 12,334 . (259) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 5,840 (42,667) - -
Current period tax losses 28,872 70,243 28,872 70.243
Balance at end 40,667 (5.928) 117,268 70,243
29 Non-current liabilities - Provisions

Consolidated Parent

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Employee henefits ‘ 18,358 18,740 - -
Decommissioning 6,530 6,161 - -
Environmental ) 16,669 ) 16,669 - -
Stamp duty . 53,655 66,820 29,800 -o-
Earnout agreement _ ' 7.721 - - -
Other 5.774 : 1,489 - -

108,707 109 879 29.800 -
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SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Lid
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

29 Non-current liabilities - Provisions (continued)

Decommissioning _

A provision for decommissioning is recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event. The further expected decommissioning cost is discounted using a pre-tax rate which is the basis of the provision
recognised. The unwinding of the discount increases the net present value of the expected liability over time, which is
recognised as an interest expense in the income statement.

Environmental )

A provision for environmental costs is made for the rehabilitation of sites based on the estimated costs of the rehabilitation.
. The liability includes the costs of reclamation, plant closure and dismantling, and waste site closure. The liability is
determined based on the present value of the obligation as appropriate. Annual adjustments to the liability are charged to
the income statement aver the estimated life of the sites. The costs are estimated based on the assumption of the current
legal requirements and technologies. Any changes in estimates are dealt with on a prospective basis.

Acquisition costs
The provision for acquisition costs includes legal fees, consultancy fees, audit fees and other fees paid to external parties
for work completed on the process of acquiring the Alinta group.

Earnout agreements )

The provision includes probable cash consideration payable to the vendors of the assets and business acquired by GLM -
Infrastructure Ltd and to the vendors of the shares and businesses in Qutback Power Pty Ltd and Cape Cable Layers Pty
Lid acquired by Jemena Asset Management Pty Ltd. The provisions are payable in the event that the relevant businesses
achieve certain performance criteria during the periods 1 August 2008 to 31 March 2010, 1 August 2008 to 31 March 2011
and 1 November 2008 to 31 March 2011 respectively, as specified in an "earnout” clause.in the sale agreements.

Stamp duty
Stamp duty provisions relate to the acqulsmon of the ex-Alinta assets and prior acquisitions.

Other
Other provisions relate to the general operations of the business including contract settlements, claims, land tax and
defects liability.

30 Non-current liabilities - Other non-current iiabilities

Consolidated ~ Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 " $'000
Loans from related parties ‘ : - : - " 523,003 484 686
Other 3.179 405 - -
) 3,179 405 523,003 484 686
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SPI (Australia} Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

31 Non-current liabilities - Retirement benefit obligations

(a) Superannuation plan

The Group makes contributions to one Equipsuper defined benefit superannuation plan and one Russell SuperSolution
Master Trust defined benefit superannuation plan. The plans provide defined benefit amounts to employees or their
dependants upon retirement, death, disablement or withdrawal. Benefits are mostly in the form of a lump sum payment
based on the employee's final average salary although some defined benefit members are also eligible for pension
.benefits. The terms and conditions of the two plans are consistent.

The defined benefit sections of the plans are closed to new members. All new members receive defined contribution,
accumulation style benefits.

Actuarial valuations of the funds as at 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008 were perfarmed by Mercer Investment
Nominees Limited (Equipsuper) and Russell Investment Group (Russell SuperSolution Master Trust).

The Group has recognised a liability in the balance sheet in respect of its defined benefit superannuation arrangements at -
31 March 2009.

The net position of the funds are set out below:

(b) Balance sheet amounts

Total amounts included in the balance sheets arising from the Group's obligations in respect of its defined benefit plans
are as follows:

Combined
2009 2008
$'000 - $'000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 200,278 180,753
Fair value of plan assets ) {137,392} (176,537
Net liability in the balance sheet 62,886 4,216

The Group has no legal obligation to settle this liability with an immediate contribution or additional one off contributions.
The Group intends to continue to contribute to the defined benefit section of the plan at the rates specified in the actuary's
latest- recommendatlons

(c} Categories of plan assets

The analysis of the plans' assets by category is as follows:

Combined
2009 2008
% %
Australian equities 32.8 36.1
International equities ' : 26.5 251
Fixed income . ' - 13.3 - 159
Property o 29 . 11.5
Cash ’ : o 53 5.5
International bonds 4.1 ‘ 4.5
Alternative strategies ! ' 8.1 1.4
- 100 100
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SPi {Australia} Assets Pty Lid

" Notes to the financial statements
31 March 20098

(continued)

~ 31 Non-current liabilities - Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(d) Reconciliations

Combined
2009 2008
$'000 $'000

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in the current period were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation 180,753 193,243
Current service cost ' ‘ 6,185 3,973
‘Interest cost : 9,165 4,894
Contributions by plan participants . 3,463 5,071
Actuarial (gains)/losses o ' 16,594 101
Taxes and premiums paid (519) (347)
Benefits paid : (18,760} (14,629)
Transfers in . 3,397 -
Curtailments : : : - (11,553)
Closing defined benefit obligation ‘ : _ 200,278 180.753

Movemenis in the fair value of plan assets in the current period were as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets . : (176,537) {220,096
Expected return on plan assets net of investment and

administration expenses : (12,584) (7,508
Actuarial gains/(losses) : : : 50,897 35,352
Taxes and premiums paid ' - : _ 519 347
Contributions from the employer ' (4,105) (2475
Contributions by plan participants (3,463) (5,071)
Benefits paid : 18,760 14,629
Acquired in business combinations (3,397) -
Curtailments ‘ - - 11,553
Adjustment to valuation estimate in prior periods : (7,482) (3.268)
Closing fair value of plan assets ' ' (137,392) (176 537}

The actual return on plan assets was a loss of $30.83 million (2008: loss of $19.97 million)

(e) Amounts recognised in income statement
The amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Current service cost . 6,185 3,973

Interest cost 9,165 4,394
Expected return on plan assets {12,584) (7.508)
Total included in employee benefits expense : 2,766 1,359

The amounts recognised in the statements of recognised income and expense are as follows:

Actuarial losses recognised in the period in the

statement of recognised income and expense (67,491) - (35,453}
Cumulative actuarial l[osses recognised in the statement

of recognised income and expense . (102,944) (35,453)
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SPI {Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

31 Non-current liabilities - Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(f} Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions are set out below:

. Russell Equipsuper
2009 2008 2009 2008
% % % %
Discount rate (active members) i 4.3 6.1 50 - 5.0
Discount rate {pensioners) N/A , N/A 5.9 5.7
Expected return on plan assets {active members) 6.5 7.5 7.0 - 7.0
Expected return on plan assets (pensioners) N/A N/A 7.5 7.5
Expected long term salary increase rate 4.5 4.0 4.5 ' 4.5
Expected pension increase rate ' N/A N/A 3.0 3.0

{9} A Employer contributions

Employer contributions to the defined benefit plans are based on recommendations by the plans' actuary. The Target
Funding method is used to determine the contribution rates. Under this method, the employer contribution rate is set at a
level such that the plans' assets are expected to equal 105 per cent of the plans' liabilities within five years.

Total employer contributions expected to be paid by the Group for the year ending 31 March 2010 are $8.87 million (parent
entity - $Nil). )

(h) Historic summary

2009 © 2008 2007 (i)
$'000 $'000 $'000
Present value of defined benefit plan obligation : - , (200,278) (180,753) (193,243}
Fair value of plan assets _ 137,392 176,537 220,098
Surplus / (deficit) ' (62.8868) _ (4.218) 26,853
Experience adjustments gains/{losses) arising on plan assets (43,415) (32,084) 6,984
Experience adjustments gains/(losses) arising on plan liabilities 7,006 (236) . (482}
{i) Actuarial reports were prepared for the 8 months ended 31 August 2007
32 Contributed equity
Consolidated . Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 ' $'000 $'000 $'000

Share capital

Ordinary shares .
Fully paid (2 shares at $1) - - - =
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33 Reserves and retained profits

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

31 March 2009
(continued)

Hedging reserve

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(é) Reserves _
Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges (123,688) (1,178) 605 -
Foreign currency translation reserve 2,439 2,056 - _ -
' (121,249) 878 605 -
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'c00 $'000 $'000
Movements:
Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges :
Balance at beginning (1,178} - - -
Revaluation . (98,099} (3,234) 605 -
Loss taken to income statement (hedge accounting) 7,650 - - -
Share of associates {32,061) 2,056 - -
Balance at end (123.688) {1.178) 605 -
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
' Moveﬁents:
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at beginning 2,056 - - -
Currency translation differences arising during the
pericd 383 2,056
Balance at end : 2,439 2,056 - -

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to highly probable forecast transactions. The future periods in which the cash flows assaciated with
derivatives in the cash flow hedge reserve are expected to impact prof it and loss are the same as when the associated

* cash flows are expected to occur.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency transtation reserve comprises all foreign currency difierences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations.
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33 Reserves and retained profits (continued)

{b) Retained profits

Movements in retained profits were as follows:

SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements

31 March 2009
(continued)

Consolidated Parent

2009 2008 2009 2008

$'000 - $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning - (55,764} - (58,753) -
Net profit/{loss) for the period 46,799 (30,947) (27,058) (58,753)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans .
recognised directly in retained earnings (47.244) (24 817) - ) -
Balance at end , (56,209) {55.764) {85.811) (58.753)

34 Remuneration of auditors -

During the period the following fees were.paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity and its

subsidiaries:

Consolidated -

Parent '
2009 2008 2009 2008
5 $ $ $
{a) Audit services

~Audit and review of financial reports : 1,350,000 1,622,000 - -
Other audit services 434,000 316.000 - -
' 1,784.000 1,938.000 - -

(b} Non-audit services .
Other advisory _ . ' _ ' 74,000 - - -
: 74,000 - - -

lt is the Group's policy to employ KPMG to pefform the audit of reg-ulatory returns as these returns represent an extension
of the information obtained from the statutory audit. Using the same firm for both contributes to the efficiency of the audit

process.
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(continued)

35 Commitments

{a) Capital commitments -

‘Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as a liability is as follows:

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2008 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Payable: : o
Within one year S . 92,348 - 3,362 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 71,004 - - -
163,352 3,362 - -

(b) Lease commitments

{{} Cancellable operating leases
The Group leases various plant and machinery under cancellable operating leases. The Group is required to give six
months notice for termination of these leases.

Consolidated . Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation
to non-cancelfable operating leases are payable as
follows: . :
Within one year 15,129 10,080 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 51,323 44,975 - -
Later than five years 27,135 32,898 - -
: 93,587 87,953 - -
Consolidated : Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 ~$'000 -$'000
(i) Finance leases
Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable
as follows:
Within one year . 688 - - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 3,098 - - -
' 3.786 - - -
Future finance charges
Within one year (190) - - -
Later than one year but not later than five years . {409) . - _ - -
Representing lease liabilities: ‘
Current 498 - - -
Non-current . 2.689 - - -
| - 3.187 - - -
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{continued) -

3‘_6 Related party transactions

(a} Parent entities

The Company is the ultimate Australian parent entity of the Group. The immediate parent of the Company is Singapore
Power International Pte Ltd, a company incorporated in Singapore, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Singapore Power Limited:
Singapore Power International Pte Ltd owns 100 per cent of the issued shares in the Company.

The ultimate parent is Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited, a company incorporated in Singapore. Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited's sole shareholder is the Minister of Finance (Incorperated), a body corporate under the Minister for
Finance (Incorporation) Act, Chapter 183 of Singapore.

{b) Related entities

The Company has agreed to pay Singapore Power Limited a management fee comprising of management services
provided. The management service charge is based on agreed arms-length rates.

During the period, the Group entered into an agreement with Enterprise Business Services (Australia) Pty Lid ("EBS"), an
entity within the Singapore Power International Pte Ltd group, for EBS to be the exclusive provider of information
technology services to the Group. The services provided by EBS include end user computing services, application
management services; managed services and project and advisory services. .

The Company uses the transmission networks of SP Australia Networks {Transmission) Ltd for the transmission of
electricity to the distribution network of Jemena Electricity Networks (Vic) Ltd. The Company also engages and receives
construction work on network assets with SP Ausnet.

(¢) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

(d) Key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation for the Group is set out below. The key management personnel of the Group
comprises the directors and those executives that report directly to the managing director.

No key management personnel compensation was paid by the Company.

Post- ' 1
Short-term | employment | Termination
benefits benefits benefits Total
$ $ $ $
2009 (1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009) 5,271,980 344,353 173,035 | 5,789,368
2008 (18 July 2007 to 31 March 2008) 4,060,117 232,506 - 4,202,623
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(continued)

36 Related party transactions (contihued)

(e) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties within the Singapbre Power Group:

Consolidated - Parent
1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to 1 April 2008 to 18 July 2007 to
31 March 2009 31 March 2008 31 March 2009 31 March 2008

$'000 $'000 '$'000 $'000
" Service revenue

Other revenue ' 31,268 12,203 16,436 9,485
Service expense . )
Administration expenses ] 16,638 - 10,367 -
Maintenance expenses . 39,073 8,191 - ' -
Interest income .
Subsidiaries : - - 207,628 111,018
Associates ' 1,429 - 1,429 -
interest expense ' . )
Other related parties . 61 - 61 -

- Loans to related parties

Loans advanced fo: _
Subsidiaries : - - © 684,986 5,194,129
Associates : 5,440 6,800 5,440 -

Loan reﬁayments raceived from: :
Subsidiaries ‘ ' - - ' 185,022 103,718

' Loans from related parties

Loans received from:

Subsidiaries - - 58,707 ‘ 508,05C
Other related parties 2,397,890 2,118,485 2,397,890 2,118,485
Loan repayments to:

Subsidiaries - - 25,438 -
Distribution received’ :

Associates - “ 6,800 13,940

-64-




SPI {Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
31 March 2009

(continued)

36 Related party transactions (continued)

{f) . Outstanding balances with related parties .

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties within the
Singapore Power Group:

Consolidated Parent

2009 2008 2009 - 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current receivables (service revenue)
Other related parties 13,529 657 84,793 52,776

Non-current receivables (loans)
Subsidiaries . - - 5,505,583 5,037,637
Associates 12,240 6,800 ) 5,440 -

Current payables (service expense) .
Other related parties 49,609 12,663 58,614 35,364

Other current liabilities (loans)
Other related parties 4,500,017 2,106,484 4,500,017 2,106,484 -

Non current liabilities {loans) . :
Subsidiaries - - 523,003 484,686
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37 Business combination

(a) Summary of acquisition

On 31 July 2008, Jemena Asset Management Pty Ltd ("JAM") acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Quthack
Power Pty Ltd. On the same day, CLM Infrastructure Pty Ltd acquired the business and net assets of CLM Excavations
“Pty Lid. On 18 November 2008 JAM acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Cape Cable Layers Pty Ltd.

Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Consolidated

2009 -
$'000
Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below)
Cash paid (including transaction costs) ‘ 65,297
Fair value of earnout agreements ’ ) 16,035
Other deferred payments ; : 200
Total purchase consideration | : ) ) 81,532
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer to (c) below} (24.155)
-.Goodwill : 57,377

The net profit/{loss) after tax for Outback Power Pty Ltd, CLM Infrastructure Pty Ltd and Cape Cable Layers Pty Ltd for the
period ended 31 March 2009 was $1.3 million, $2.4 million and ($0.05 million) respectively.

The pro forma net profit after tax for Qutback Power Pty Ltd, CLM Infrastructure Pty Ltd and Cape Cable Layers Pty Ltd,

assuming they were held by the Group for the entire financial period ended 31 March 2009, would be approximately $2.0
miliion, $3.5 million and $0.1 million respectively.

{b) Purchase consideration

Consolidated Parent

2009. 2008 2009 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000 : $'000
Qutflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash

" acquired

Cash consideration 65,297 - - -
Less: balances acquired _ :
Cash ' 30 - ‘ - -
Bank overdraft ’ (327) - - -
Outflow of cash 65,504 - - -
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37 Business combination (continued)

(c) Assets and liabilities acquired

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Cash

Receivables

Inventories

Other current assets

Plant and equipment
Deferred tax asset
Payables

Bank overdraft .
Provision for employee benefits
Other current liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Other non current liabilities
Net assets

Net identifiable assets acquired
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Acquiree’s Fair values
carrying Fair value recognised on
- amount adjustments  acquisition
$'000 $'000 $'000
30 - 30
13,877 - 13,877
1,161 - 1,161
7,246 C- i 7,246
16,095 888 16,983
262 - 262
(7,297) - (7,297)
327y - (327)
{1,031) - (1,031)
(2,390} - T (2,390)
- {266} (266)
(4,093) - (4,093).
23,533 §22 24,155

24,155
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37 Business combination (continued)
Prior period

(a) Summary of acquisition

On 31 August 2007, a consortium comprising Singapere Power International Pte Ltd ("SPI"), Babcock & Brown
Infrastructure Ltd ("BBI"}, Babcock & Brown Power Ltd {"BBP"), and Babcock & Brown Wind Ltd ("BBW"), together the
“Consortmm" acquired Alinta Ltd and its controlled entities (the "Alinta group").

SP| created a new whally owned subsidiary, the Company, to hold the assets allocated to it as part of the Consortium.
The key components of the Alinta group, unless atherwise noted in the table below, were acquired by the Company:

Acquired assets | Interest Location
NSW Gas Distribution Network 100% NSW
Victorian Electricity Distribution Network ’ 100% VIC

. Eastern Gas Pipeline 100% VIC / NSW
Queensland Gas Pipeline . 100% QLD
VicHub ’ : 100% VIC
Asset Management business * * Eastern States
ActewAGL Distribution Partnership 100% ACT

- United Energy Distribution Network ‘ : _ 34% VIC
TransAct , 6.8% ACT

* The asset management business comprises 100% of Jemena Asset Management Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta
Asset Management (3} Pty Ltd) and a 49% interest in Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd {"AAM") (comprising the eastern
Australian operations of AAM which is the existing asset management business of the ex-Alinta Group). The shareholding
in AAM is held 51% by WestNet Infrastructure Group Ltd (formerly known as Alinta 2000 Ltd), a company owned by
Babcock & Brown Infrastructure Ltd and 49% by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (pending receipt of relevant
consents {o enable the transfer of ownership to the Company). The Company is entitled to a revenue stream from AAM
which reflects the earnings derived by AAM from the east coast asset management business conducted by AAM.

. Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodWiII are as follows:

2008
(Provisional) Adjustments 2009
$'c00 $'o00 $'000
Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below)
Cash paid : 7,083,000 - 7,083,000
QOther consideration ‘ 190,525 (107,871) 82,654
Direct costs relating to the acquisition : 83,000 - 83,000
Total purchase consideration ‘ 7,356,525 {107,871) 7,248,654
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer to (c) below) {4.766.554) _- 68,179 (4,698.375)
Goodwill (refer to (c) below and note 20) 2,589,971 (39.692) 2,550,279
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37 Business combination (continued)

(b} Purchase consideration

Qutfloew of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash

acquired
Cash consideration

Less: ba!ance's‘acqufred
Cash .
Outflow of cash

(c) Assets and liabilities acquired

SPI {Australia) Assets Pty Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

31 March 2009
(continued)

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

. Cash

Receivables _
Inventories :
Property, plant and equipment
Investments :
Intangible assets

Other non current assets
Deferred tax asset

Tax receivable

Payables

Debt securities

Other current liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Other non current liabilities
Net assets

Net identifiable assets acquired

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 7,083,000 - 7,083,000
- 43,836 - -
- 7,039 164 - 7.083,000
Fair values
Acquiree's ) recognised on Fair values
~carrying Adjustments  acquisition recognised on
amount (provisional) (provisional) Adjustments acquisition
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
43,836 - 43,836 - 43,836
258,922 - 258,922 (7,593) 251,329
- 15,953 - 15,953 - 15,953
4,022,347 565,123 . 4,587,470 17,625 4,605,095
- 644,340 365,989 1,010,329 (111,117) 899,212
256,992 - 256,992 16,012 273,004
194,817 - 194,817 - 194,817
17,147 26,425 43,572 - 43,572
87,236 - 87,236 8,931 96,167
(261,052) (12,620) (273,672) 2,123 (271,549,
(1,251,402) - {1,251,402) - (1,251,402
(74,320) .- (74,320) - (74,320)
(59.591) (26,642) (86,233) 5,840 (80,393)
(46.946) - {46,946) - (46,9486)
3.848.279 918,275 4,766,554 (68.179) 4,698,375
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38 Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 2(a)

Country of .
Name of entity incorporation Class of shares Equity holding
' . . 2009 2008
% : %

~ Jemena Electricity Networks (Vic) Ltd (formerly Alinta AE :

" Ltd) Australia Ordinary . 100 100
Jemena Gas Networks (NSW) Ltd (formerly Alinta AGN -
Ltd) Australia Crdinary . 100 100
Jemena Asset Management Holdings Pty Ltd {formerly . :

Alinta-ASB Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Asset Management (2) Pty Ltd (formerly Alinta

Asset Management (2) Pty Lid) Australia Ordinary’ : 100 100
Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary * *
Jemena Eastern Gas Pipeline (1) Pty Ltd {formerly Alinta
DEEGP Pty Ltd) _ Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Eastern Gas Pipeline (2) Pty Ltd (formerly Alinta
DEGP Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary . 100 : 100
Jemena Eastern Gas Pipeline Holdings Pty Lid (formerly : '
Alinta DENSWGH Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Queensland Gas Pipeline (2) Pty Lid {formerly '

Alinta DEQP Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary - 100 100
Jemena Queensland Gas Pipeline (3) Pty Ltd (formerly ' ‘

Alinta DPN Pty Lid) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Queensland Gas Pipeline (1) Pty Ltd (formerly :

Alinta DQP Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena VicHub Pipeline Pty Ltd (formerly Allnta BVH _

Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena EA Pty Lid (formerly Alinta EA Pty Ltd) . Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Eastern Gas Pipeline (3) Pty Ltd {formerly Alinta ’ ‘

EGP Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100~
Jemena Gas Transmission Pty Ltd (formerly Alinta Gas

Transmission Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Networks (ACT) Pty Ltd (formerly Alinta GCA
Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Group Holdings Pty Ltd (farmerly Altnta Group

Hoeldings Pty Lid) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Holdings Pty Ltd (formerly Alinta LGA Holdmgs '

Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Limited (formerly Alinta LGA Lid) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Gas Pipelines Holdings Pty Ltd (formerly New : . :

Alinta ED Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena AC Pty Ltd {formerly Alinta AC Pty Ltd) Australia Crdinary 100 100
Jemena AEQS Pty Ltd (formerly Alinta AEOS Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena AFN Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta AFN Pty :

Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Al Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta Al Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 . 100
Jemena ANZI Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta ANZI Pty -

Ltd) Ausiralia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena ASBen Pty Ltd (fermerly known as Alinta ASBen . :

Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 - 100
Jemena Asset Management Pty Ltd (formerly known as

Alinta Asset Management (3) Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena Asset Management (4) Pty Ltd (formerly known

as Alinta Asset Managemenit (4) Pty Ltd) ‘ Australia - Ordinary 100 - 100
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38 Subsidiaries (continued) -

Country of :
Name of entity ‘ * incorporation Class of shares Equity holding
2009 2008
% %
Jemena Asset Management (5) Pty Lid {formerly known ' ‘

. as Alinta Asset Management (5) Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena ATC Piy Ltd (formerly known as Alinta ATC Pty
Ltd) ‘ Australia Crdinary 100 100
Jemena ATA Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta ATA Pty ‘

- Ltd) Australia Ordinary © 100 _100
Jemena ACI Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta Cl Pty
Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena DAF Pty Ltd (formerly knawn as Alinta DAF Pty
Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena DB Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta DB P .

Ltd) . ' Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena DBS Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta DBS Pty .

" Ltd) Australia Crdinary 100 - 100
Jemena GD Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta GD Pty
Ltd) Australia Ordinary . 100 100
Jemegna NT Pipelines Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta : .

IO Pty Ltd) - Australia Ordinary . 100 10C
Jemena NM Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta NM Pty ) .
Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jemena NSGC Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta NSGC ) ‘

Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 10C
Jemena PG Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta PG Pty '
Ltd) : Australia Crdinary 100 100
Jemena RA Pty Ltd (formerly known as Alinta RA Pty :

Ltd) ' Australia Ordinary 100 10C
Jemena NPSWA Pty Ltd (formerly known as National

Power Services (Western Australia) Pty Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100

" AguaNet Sydney Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 10C
Jemena Colongra Pty Ltd (formerly known as SPI .

Colongra Pty Ltd) : ' Australia Ordinary ' 100 100
SPI (Australia) RE Pty Ltd _ Australia Ordinary 100 100
Rosehill Water Pty Ltd - . Australia Ordinary 100 -
Rosehill Water Network Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 .-
SPI Rosehill Pty Ltd ~Australia Ordinary 100 -

© 3P! Rosehill Network Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 -
CLM Infrastructure Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary ' 100 -
Qutback Power Pty Ltd Australia - Ordinary 100 -

" Cape Cable Layers Pty Lid ~Australia Ordinary ' 100 - ‘
Jemena New Zealand Ltd (formerly Alinta NZ Ltd) New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
Jemena NZE Lid (formerly Alinta NZE Ltd) New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
Jemena NZH Lid (formerly Alinta NZH Ltd) New Zealand " Ordinary 100 100
Jemena NZM Ltd (formeriy Alinta NZM Ltd) New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
Jemena NZTCH Ltd (formerly Alinta TCH Ltd) New Zealand COrdinary 100 100
Jemena NZDE Ltd {formerly Data Engineering Limited) New Zealand Crdinary -100 100
Jemena NZNPS Ltd (formerly National Power Services .

(New Zealand) Ltd) New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
* The Group has a 49% interest in Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd ("AAM™"), an existing asset management

business of the ex-Alinta Group. The shareholding in AAM is held 51% by WestNet Infrastructure Group Ltd

- (formerly known as Alinta 2000 Ltd), a company owned by Babcock & Brawn Infrastructure Ltd and 49% by a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (pending receipt of relevant consents to enable the transfer of
ownership to the Company). The Company is entitled to a revenue stream from AAM which reflects the earnings
derived by AAM from the east coast asset management business conducted by AAM. :
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Carrying amounts
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649,250

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Yo % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Investment in United Energy :
Distribution Holdings Pty Lid 34 34 88,862 124,230 141,353 265,760
Redeemable preference shares 34 34 129.677 124,460 129,677 -
218,539 248,690 271,030 265.760
{a) Summarised financial information of associates
Ownership .
Interest Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit
% $'000 - $'000 $'000 $'000
2009
United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty
Ltd : T34 2,313,365 2,344,031 427,109 10,11¢€
2008 .
United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty
Ltd 34 2,211,791 2,030,714 261,521 15,784
40 Interest in joint ventures
' 2009 2008
% Interest %_Interest
Actew AGL Distribution Partnership 50 50
Consolidated Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount of investment in partnership 649.250 740.684 - -
‘ 740,684 - -

41 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

On 1 May 2009, the Australian Energy Regulator ("AER") released its final report on the Weighted Average. Cost of Capital _
{"WACC") to be used in determining tariffs for electricity distribution and transmission businesses. This determination will
be applied to Jemena Electricity Netwark's next regulatory reset period 2011-2015.

On 1 May 2009, Westnet Infrastructure Group Ltd {formerly known as Alinta 2000 Ltd), a company owned by Babcock and
-Brown Infrastructure Ltd, transferred its 51% ownership of Alinta Asset Management Pty Ltd ("AAM") to a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. AAM is therefore, from 1 May 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Refer to note 38 for details regarding the ownership of AAM in the financial year ending 31 March 2009.

No other matter or circumstance has occurred subsequent to period end that has significantly affecte-d, ar may significantly
affect, the operations of the Company or Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company or

Group in subsequent financial years.
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In tl_'le' Direciors' opinion:

(a). the financial statemenis and notes set out on pages 5 io 72 are in accordance with the Corporalions Act 2001,
: including: ‘

(i} complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corparations Regulations 2007 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(1i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and Group's financial position as at 31 March 2008 and of
their perfarmance for the financial period ended on that date. : :

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
: due and payable. ‘

This declaration is made in accordance with a resalution of the Directors.

Cluek Poh Huat
Directar ~

h A Y
Paul John Adams
Directar

Date: J‘N’Ea Meu'l ! Dﬂ
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd

We have audited the accompanying financial report of SPI (Australia) Asscts Pty Ltd (the
Company), which comprises the balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the income statements,
statements of recognised income and expense and cash flow statements for the year ended on that
date, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes 1 to 41 and the
directors’ declaration set out on page 73 of the Group comprising the Company and the entmes it
controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the ﬁnancml year.

Directors’ responsibility.. Jor the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the

" financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reascnable in
the circumstances. In note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial report of the Group,
comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducied
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that
we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedurcs selected depend on the anditor’s judgement, |
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acconnting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all materjal respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations), a view which is consistent with our
understanding of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and of their performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcwnt and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Rane

Independence

In condicting our audit, we have comphed with the independence requlrements of the
Corporations Act 2001,

Auditor’s opinion
. In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of SPI (Austraha) Assets Pty Ltd isin accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, 1ncludmg

- (i)  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position as
at 31 March 2009 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b} the financial report of the Group also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosed innote 1,

A

KPMG
Michael Bray
Partner

Melboume

4 May 2009
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